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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries
in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM
mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by The Stock Exchange.
GEM-Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed

issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon

the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of WLS Holdings Limited collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to WLS Holdings
Limited. The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: i. the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; ii. there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and iii. all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived

at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2V H =+ H 1k B BU4FE FF Financial Year Ended 30 April
—FFLE SERENG — BB

Tl Tl T
(FE%1)

2007 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
(restated)

220,006 148,503 176,393
7,533 6,424 5,467
6,646 4,517 4,147

1.44 0.99 0.91

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 23 July 2001 and became the
holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on 23 November 2001 as
a result of the Group Reorganisation as set out in the Company s Prospectus dated 30
November 2001 (the “Prospectus”).

The above financial summary prior to 2004 has not been adjusted for the effect on the
changes in the accounting policies as set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements as the directors considered that it is not practical to do so.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

I have great pleasure to present this year’s annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”). Due to the continuous boom in the
Hong Kong economy as well as enormous business opportunities in the hyper-
active construction activities in our target markets such as Macau and India,
the Group’s business activities produced much improved results during the

year ended 30 April 2007 than those of the previous year.

During the period under review, the turnover of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$220 million, representing an increase of about 48% as
compared with a turnover of approximately HK$149 million of the preceding
year. Profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 30 April 2007
amounted to approximately HK$6,600,000, representing an increase of about
46% as compared to about HK$4,500,000 of last year.

As I reported in last year’s annual report, the Group has attained a level at
which the various business units coalesce into a balanced business portfolio
after a period of business diversification, both geographically and in product
range. During the financial year ended 30 April 2007, the Group made the
bold strategic decision to concentrate on developing and penetrating the
target foreign markets with burgeoning and relentless economic activities
particularly in the construction field. Consequently, we achieved remarkable
success in terms of profitability in the business operations of our international

division in Macau and India.
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In terms of product range, we are no longer just relying on the provision of
scaffolding services as our dominant line of business. In fact, through the
period of diversification and market development of the last few years, we have
successfully developed into a renowned specialist service provider in GRC
(Glass Reinforced Cement) themed cladding, themed painting of artifacts,
theme park signages, high-quality fitting out works, access equipment and
parapet railings whilst maintaining our position as a market leader in the

scaffolding trade.

Due to the foresight of our management, we were one of the first few Hong
Kong businesses setting up branch offices in Macau as far back in 2002 to
tap into the forecast vast construction developments’ resources and business
opportunities. Our business results validated the correctness of this business
decision as we established our reputation in providing impeccable specialist
services in a wide range of construction-related products and professional
services to large-scale Macau projects, the most notable of which is the

Venetian Macau in Cotai.

Moreover, the success of development of the Indian theme park market cannot
escape mentioning. We have grasped the opportunity of the current boom
in the Indian economy and provided specialist design and supply of themed
artifacts and signages to a number of famous new amusement parks in India.
Utilising our business contacts in India and banking on our good reputation
from past project references, we endeavour to market and promote the
assumption of a more major role by the Group such as management contractor
in potential mega-size construction projects in India. Concurrently, feasibility
studies were made and marketing efforts exerted to further develop into the
current burgeoning Middle East construction markets such as Dubai in the

United Arab Emirates.

At present, the Hong Kong economy is experiencing a considerable boom
and investment climate is extremely positive. At the same time, the vibrancy
of the economies in Macau, India and certain Middle East countries
provides abundant business opportunities to the Group. It is the vision of
our management that the Group would gradually evolve into becoming a
recognized provider of management contracting services in our target overseas
markets. Furthermore, our evolution in developing into a provider of specialist
contracting services and construction-related products will further enhance
our reputation and status in the construction industry as a dependable ‘one-stop’
professional service provider which will ultimately contribute to even higher

profitability and shareholders’ value.
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), I would like to thank all
our staff for their continuous hard work and dedication. With the constant
vigilance of our management in maintaining the optimal efficiency of the
Group and with our good track record of identifying such untapped market
opportunities, I am confident that the Group will continue to achieve sustained

growth in the coming year.

So Yu Shing

Chairman

25 July 2007
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 30 April 2007, the turnover of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$220 million, representing an increase of about 48% as
compared with a turnover of approximately HK$149 million of the preceding
year. Profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 30 April 2007
amounted to HK$6.6 million approximately, representing an increase of about

46% as compared to about HK$4.5 million last year.

During the past year, the Hong Kong economy has remained robust throughout
the period. The investment climate continued to be very buoyant and positive,
as demonstrated by the phenomenal success of the enormous over-subscription
for a number of mega-size IPOs (Initial Public Offerings). The full impact
of the benefit to the local economy resulting from the implementation of the

QDII represented additional liquidity to the Hong Kong equity market.

Moreover, the gradual transformation of Macau from a small Asian city into
an international hub with world-class entertainment facilities like casinos,
resorts and convention venues presented ample market opportunities for the
diversification of the business of the Group to Macau. Concurrently, the rapid
expansion of the Indian economy also posed as a target for the Group to utilise
its expertise, experience and reputation to develop the GRC and theme park

markets and participate in some of the construction projects in India.
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The management of the Group is confident that the diversification of the
Group in geographical segments to Macau and India can achieve optimal

return on our investment thus enhancing shareholders’ value.

With regard to the scaffolding division, the Group maintained its position as
the market leader of the scaffolding industry during the year ended 30 April
2007. In addition, the recent trend of an increase in large-scale renovation
works of shopping arcades by property holding companies in a bid to benefit
from the prevailing boom in retail markets presents ample opportunities
for the Group to further diversify to the provision of scaffolding for arcade
renovation. During the year ended 30 April 2007, the Group secured
scaffolding works contracts for the renovation of World Trade Centre, C C Wu
Building and Shatin Centre. Furthermore, the provision of climbing scaffold to
Airport Express Kowloon Station (Phase 6) received favourable feedback from
the main contractor. At the same time, the management of the Group devoted
considerable efforts to streamlining the operations and minimise costs of the
scaffolding division in a bid to enhance the efficiency of the Group and to

deliver total satisfaction to the clients.

A EXENE - BERE
Theme Park in India - Signages
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Concurrently, the Group continues its business strategy of constantly
introducing innovative products to the market. The second generation metal
H-Frame scaffolding was well received by the main contractors at the
Manhattan Hills site and the renovation of the exterior part of World Trade
Centre. The application of this metal H-Frame scaffolding is very successful as
it facilitates savings in labour cost, enhances safety and improves the outlook
of buildings under construction or renovation. The management of the Group
is very positive of the future contribution to the Group from the anticipated

wider adoption of this ingenious product.

During the past year, the Group consolidated its position as a prominent
service provider in the markets of Glass Reinforced Cement/Glass Reinforced
Plastic (GRC/GRP) themed cladding services as well as the design and supply
of themed artefacts, animals and signages. The Group was awarded works
contracts for the provision of GRC/GRP themed cladding services to Noah’s
Ark in Ma Wan, the provision of GRC animal sculptures and GRC covered
walkway in Ma Wan Park as well as the supply and installation of GRC
external fagade to the Venetian Macau. In addition, the Group succeeded in
securing contracts for the supply of signages and artefacts to the theme parks
in India. The management of the Group is extremely upbeat about the future
of the market for the supply of GRC/GRP products, themed artefacts and

signages as an alternative source in contribution to the revenue for the Group.

In respect of the access equipment division, the contract for the design, supply,
installation and maintenance of access equipment for the Stonecutters Bridge
proceeded according to plan. A new distribution agreement was signed with
a renowned supplier of access equipment in Luxembourg, thus signifying a
wider range of products being marketed by the Group. Regarding the parapet
railing business, the on-going projects at Route 8 Ngong Shuen Chau Viaduct,
Deep Bay Link South also progressed according to schedule. At the same
time, the Group’s fleet of temporary gondolas enjoyed a high rate of utilisation
during most part of last year and a total of 8 new rental contracts for temporary

gondolas were successfully secured.
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With regard to the fitting out division, the Group was awarded a total of 9
new works contracts during the year ended 30 April 2007. Among the new
contracts, the significant ones include the provision of fitting out services to
the lobby of the Millennium City (Phase 6) in Kwun Tong and to the lobby of
a construction site in Cheung Sha Wan, and the provision of suspended ceiling
works to the podium lobby of Airport Express Kowloon Station (Phase 6)
development. The successful diversification of the Group into the fitting out
market and the goodwill it acquired from project references contributed to the

Group in becoming one of the prominent players in the fitting out industry.

During the year ended 30 April 2007, the international division achieved
marked results in developing and penetrating the scaffolding and GRC/theme
park businesses in Macau and India. As the tourist and gaming industries
continues to flourish in Macau, the resulting vast increase in large-scale
construction activities present ample business opportunities to the Group.
Significant new contracts awarded in Macau included the supply of scaffolding
services to the Venetian, the Sands Hotel and the Arc de Triomphe Project
in Macau. The business strategy of the Group is to target and focus on the
supply of a full range of construction-related products and services to further
penetrate the Macau market thus contributing to the overall profitability of the

Group.

With regard to the research and development division, following the success
in obtaining the grant of the patent covering China in respect of our Metal-
Bamboo Matrix Scaffolding in May 2006, the Group continues to develop and
market our patented one-lock metal device coupler. During the period under
review, royalty fees were received from other sub-contractors for exclusive
use of our patented Metal-Bamboo Matrix System Scaffolding. This signifies
wider adoption of our patent which could contribute to an alternative source
of revenue to the Group. All in all, research and development efforts and
resources would continue to be deployed with the objective of constantly
introducing innovative and ingenious products to the market to maintain the

Group’s position as a market leader of the industry.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

At present, the Hong Kong economy is experiencing a considerable upturn
boom. Strong consumer spending, on the back of positive investor sentiment
and rising share prices, coupled with a buoyant tourism sector supported by
the Mainland Individual Visit Scheme and the Closer Economic Partnership
Arrangements (the “CEPA”) and QDII all contribute to bolster consumer

confidence and retail boom.

In line with the current bullish market sentiment, the Group has received
considerable increase in the number of invitations to tender for works contracts
in all its various lines of business. Moreover, the Group has established itself
as a specialist in the provision of GRC/GRP themed cladding and associated
products as well as the supplier of management contracting services as well as

signages and artefacts to local and overseas theme park projects.

Furthermore, the construction of numerous large-scale hotel and resort
developments in Macau with casinos and an array of entertainment and
convention facilities is under way. This will certainly present ample business

opportunities to different lines of business of the Group.

In conclusion, the Group’s business strategy will continue to concentrate
on developing the emerging markets with relentless construction activities
such as Macau, India and exploring the Middle East. At the same time, the
management of the Group will remain constantly vigilant of reducing the
costs whilst maintaining optimal efficiency of the Group in a bid to increase

profitability and enhance shareholders’ value.

Project Portfolio (As at 30 April 2007)

Hong Kong
. Kowloon Station Development (Phase 6)
. Harbour Green

. Manhattan Hill

. Yoho Town (CDA 12-Blocks 1 to 5)

. D.D. 104 & 105 in Ngau Tam Mei, Yuen Long
. Park Island (P hase 5)

. Noah’s Atk in Ma Wan

. Nina Tower
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. Bel Air Garden, R4b Residential Development

. N.K.I.LL. 6418, Sha Po Road, Kowloon City

. K.T.I.LL. 502, 392 Kwun Tong Road

. Special School in Kong Sin Wan Tsuen, Pokfulam

. Primary School in Area 12, Yuen Long

. The Hong Kong Community College at the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University

. World Trade Centre

. New Town Plaza Arcade

. C C Wu Building

. Shatin Centre

. Stonecutters Bridge

. Route 8 Ngong Shuen Chau Viaduct

. Deep Bay Link South

Macau
. Venetian Macau in Cotai Phases 1 & 2
. Crown Hotel Macau

. Arc de Triomphe

India
. Rohini Amusement Park
. Noida Amusement Park

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

During the period under review, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$220 million, representing an increase of 48% compared
with that of the preceding year. This encouraging result reflects the success
of the management decision to diversify by businesses line and geographic
market of the Company. The lack of large-scale commercial and residential
projects in Hong Kong led to a reduction of turnover in Hong Kong. However,
the scaffolding division and management contracting division in Macau
benefited from the prevailing boom in the Macau construction sector. In
addition, the economic growth in India provides many opportunities for
the local construction industry. The Company has entered into this market
successfully after completion of several construction projects relating to the

theme parks in New Delhi, India.
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Gross profit of the Company increased by 22% compared with last year whilst
gross profit margin reduced from 20% to 17% during the period. The profit
margins generated from the projects of the management contracting division
including those in Macau and India and also the Macau scaffolding division
are satisfactory, thus compensating the reduction of gross profit from the Hong

Kong scaffolding division resulting from severe competition.

To cope with our business expansion and diversification, administrative
expenses had increased by 18% compared with the preceding year. Increase
of administrative expense was mainly attributable to the employment of
more experienced management staff whose effort not only serves current
business but also for future development. In addition, the Company has
increased spending on looking for new business opportunities and corporate

development.

Since the financing of our current businesses is mainly by bank borrowing,
the diversified businesses increased the need for working capital and hence
increased the finance cost by 87%. The Company is currently seeking for other
financing alternatives to reduce finance cost such as the placing of ordinary
shares after the end of financial period ended 30 April 2007.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, CAPITAL
STRUCTURE AND GEARING RATIO

During the year under review, the Group financed its operations by
internally generated cash flow, banking facilities and finance leases
provided by banks and finance companies. As at 30 April 2007, the Group’s
consolidated shareholders’ funds, current assets, net current assets and total
assets were HK$53,701,000 (2006: HK$44,316,000), HK$125,925,000
(2006: HK$84,303,000), HK$13,906,000 (2006: HK$17,833,000) and
HK$179,996,000 (2006: HK$117,527,000) respectively.
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As at 30 April 2007, the Group’s consolidated bank overdrafts and bank loans
were HK$27,543,000 (2006: HK$18,153,000) and HK$51,624,000 (2006:
HK$26,579,000) respectively. As at 30 April 2007, the Group’s bank loans had
an amount of HK$39,618,000 maturing in 2008 and HK$12,006,000 maturing
in and after 2008. As at 30 April 2007, obligations under finance leases
amounted to HK$261,000 (2006: HK$304,000), of which HK$194,000 is due
for repayment in 2008 and HK$67,000 is due for repayment after 2008.

As at 30 April 2007, the Group’s bank and cash balances amounted to
HK$11,548,000 (2006: HK$5,046,000). As at 30 April 2007, the Group’s
gearing ratio (total bank borrowings and obligations under finance leases
divided by shareholders’ fund) was about 148% (2006: 102%).

Most of the Group’s bank and cash balances, short-term and long-term bank
borrowings and obligations under finance leases were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. Most of the bank borrowings bear interest at market rates and
are repayable by instalments over a period of 3 months to 2 years. Obligations
under finance leases have an average lease term of 1 year. All such leases have

interest rates fixed at the contract date and fixed repayment bases.

The Directors believe that the Group is in a healthy financial position and has
sufficient resources to discharge its debts and to satisfy its commitments and

working capital requirements.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year under review, on 16 August 2006, a subsidiary of the
Group entered into a provisional sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party for the acquisition of a property for a consideration of
HK$17,600,000. Details of this acquisition were stated in the circular of the
Company dated 6 September 2006. The formal sale and purchase agreement
was signed on 17 October 2006 and this acquisition was completed on 17
January 2007. Other than that, there were no significant investments held by
the Group, no material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated

companies by the Group during the year.

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors do not have any future plans for material investments or capital

assets.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. The Directors consider that the potential foreign exchange

exposure of the Group is limited.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 April 2007, the total number of full-time employees of the Group
was 128 (2006: 136). The total remuneration paid to employees (including
directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$47,350,000 in 2007 (2006:
HK$35,253,000). Employees are remunerated according to their performance
and working experience. In addition to basic salaries and participation in the
mandatory provident fund scheme, staff benefits include performance bonus,

medical scheme, share options and training.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 30 April 2007, there was no purchase, sale or redemption

by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Code on Corporate Governance Practice set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules (“Code on Corporate Governance Practices”) which
is effective for the accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January
2005 has replaced the minimum standard of good practices for issuers and
their directors stated in Rules 5.35 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules. In the
opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices. A Corporate Governance Report will be despatched

with the annual report of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 9 November 2001 with
written terms of reference that clearly establish the audit committee’s authority
and duties. The audit committee currently comprises 3 independent non-
executive directors of the Company, Dr. Sritawat Kitipornchai, Mr. Yeung Po
Chin and Mr. Lam Kwok Wing.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s
annual report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports and provide
advice and comments thereon to the Board. The audit committee will also be
responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and

internal control procedures of the Group.

Five audit committee meetings were held since 1 May 2006 up to the date of

this announcement.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. So Yu Shing (B, , aged 55, is the chairman of the Group. Mr. So Yu
Shing has served in the Labour Department of the Hong Kong Government
before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, on 17 September 1991. He holds a bachelor
of arts degree from the University of Hong Kong and a master of science
degree in engineering business management from Warwick University of the

United Kingdom.

Mr. So has also acquired the Registered Safety Officer qualification. He is a
prospective candidate of a doctorate degree in building and construction at the

City University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca (2 i 7 ) , aged 52, is an executive director of
the Company and the spouse of Mr. So Yu Shing. Ms. Lai has been actively
involved in the management of the Group. She was engaged in the teaching
profession for over 17 years before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works

Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in 1988.
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Mr. Ip Ping Hong, Antony ( 3% “F ¢ ) , aged 59, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Ip holds a B.Sc. (Hons) degree in Building Economics and
Measurement and was elected Fellow membership of the Royal Institute
of Chartered Surveyors, Fellow Membership of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, Hong Kong Registered Professional Surveyors, and the Associate
membership of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Ip started his career
in the United Kingdom in the specialized field of quantity surveying in 1970,
having worked for quantity surveying consultancies and served in the UK
Birmingham City Council and the UK Department of Environment — Property
Services Agency prior to returning to Hong Kong in 1981. Mr. Ip has since
held senior positions in one of Hong Kong’s largest property developers for
17 years and subsequently served the construction industry for 4 years as
the Assistant Director for the Construction Industry Training Authority for
vocational and safety training. Mr. Ip overall has managerial experience of
over 30 years in the building and construction industry and was appointed as

an executive Director of the Company on 2 July 2004.

Mr. Woo Siu Lun (§JJEBE) , aged 52, is an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Woo has over 28 years of experience in various industries holding
senior executive positions. He was a director and senior partner of Euroair
Equipments Supplies Limited, a local engineering firm specialising in air-
conditioning equipment supply and he held an executive position in Liu Chong
Hing Bank Limited for 12 years before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works
Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in 1999. Mr.
Woo holds a bachelor of social sciences degree from the University of Hong
Kong. He is also an associate of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and has been a qualified corporate secretary in Hong Kong for

over 20 years.
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Mr. Kong Kam Wang ( {I. 8t % ), aged 50, is an executive director of the
Company. He has over 20 years of experience in the banking industry and has
held senior management positions specialising in corporate banking as well as
retail banking in a number of banks in Hong Kong and the PRC. Before joining
the Company in March 2002 and being appointed as an executive director
of the Company in June 2002, Mr. Kong was engaged as Vice President
and Zone Manager of First Pacific Bank Limited. In 1994, Mr. Kong was
assigned by First Pacific Bank Limited as representative to set up a Shenzhen
representative office in the PRC. During that period, Mr. Kong established
close relationship with various Chinese Government bureaus and other foreign
financial institutions whilst stationing in the Shenzhen representative office.
Mr. Kong graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1981
with an honours bachelor degree in Business Management. Mr. Kong also
obtained an executive master of business administration degree (“EMBA”)
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Kong was appointed as Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 1 January 2007.

Mr. Kan Siu Lun (f&jJEMB%) , aged 52, is an executive director of the Marketing &
Development Division of the Company. He holds a MBA degree from Henley
Management College, Brunel University in the United Kingdom. He also holds
a Fellow Membership of the Chartered Institute of Management (FCIM) and
the Institute of Management Services (FMS) in the United Kingdom. Mr. Kan
has over 22 years of experience in the commercial field. Prior to joining the
Company in June 2006, Mr. Kan had held senior management positions with
the First Pacific Bank Limited, HSBC and Compaq Computer Limited in which

capacity he served various clients of the Greater China Region.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Sritawat Kitipornchai ( B & i ), aged 62, is the Head of Department
of Building and Construction at the City University of Hong Kong. He
holds a bachelor of engineering degree with first class honours from
Monash University and a doctorate degree from the University of Sydney.
Dr. Kitipornchai has a wide range of teaching, research and consulting
experience in structural engineering for over 30 years; particularly in the steel
structures area. He is recognised as a world expert in nonlinear analysis of
steel structures. Dr. Kitipornchai is a recipient of several awards including an
excellent teaching award and a research award for paper in the Engineering
Structures Journal. Dr. Kitipornchai has been the Regional Editor of the
internationally well-known Engineering Structures Journal since 1993 and is
a member of editorial boards of a number of other journals. He has published
6 books and over 200 scientific journal papers and is also the holder of 2
international patents. Dr. Kitipornchai was appointed as an independent non-

executive director on 9 November 2001.

Mr. Yeung Po Chin (5351 ) , aged 56, holds a bachelor of arts degree from
the University of Hong Kong. He is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and
has been admitted as a solicitor in England and Wales and as a barrister and
solicitor in Australia (ACT). Mr. Yeung has extensive experience in the legal
profession, and has been a legal adviser to a number of associations and an
executive-committee member of various social clubs. Mr. Yeung is now a
solicitor at T. L. Ip & Co. Mr. Yeung was appointed as an independent non-

executive director on 12 November 2002.

Mr. Lam Kwok Wing (#kBi%%) , aged 53, is a qualified accountant and he was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 11 August 2004. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor of social sciences degree and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He is the sole proprietor of K. W. Lam & Co., Certified Public
Accountants and has over 29 years of experience in auditing, accounting and

taxation.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Hui Tung Wah ( #F B 3 ), aged 53, holds a bachelor degree in Social
Sciences from the University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Brunel University in the United Kingdom. He was
appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 11 August 2004.
Mr. Hui was an executive director of Omnicorp Limited from July 2001 to
May 2003 and rejoined it as deputy chief executive officer from 1 May 2005,
having served for 2 years as senior vice president of Sino-Forest Corporation,
a Toronto-listed company. Mr. Hui is currently an executive director of
Omnicorp Limited. He comes from a strong financial and general management
background having spent about 29 years working in senior management
positions of major international and local banks, and companies in Hong
Kong, Australia and Canada. He is a seasoned executive and has extensive
management experience. He is currently a non-executive director of Café de

Coral Holdings Limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ho Chun Chuen, ( fif #i#% 4t ), aged 55, joined the Group in December
2006 as a director of WLS Contractors Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. He holds a diploma in Construction Management and is a
member of the Australian Institute of Building, a member of the Chartered
Institute of Building, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction

Managers and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Project Management.

Mr. Ho is a seasoned administrator in construction project management and his
career in the construction industry spanned for over 30 years during which he
was responsible for the completion of many renowned large-scale construction
projects both in Hong Kong and Macau when he was in the employ of a

number of well-known Hong Kong property developers and main contractors.

Mr. So Wang Bon, Edward, ( # % 8 ), aged 26, joined the Group in 2000
as a director of Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, which carries out all the scaffolding work
contracts of the Company. He graduated from Oxford Brookes University in
the United Kingdom with a bachelor of science degree. He also holds a master
of science degree in Engineering Business Management from the University

of Warwick in the United Kingdom.

Mr. Fu Chi Cheung (f3&#¥) , aged 56, the general manager of the scaffolding
division of the Company. He joined Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in April 1988 and has
been in charge of the contract and quantity surveying department of the
Company for over 20 years. He graduated from a university in Shanghai. Mr.
Fu also has experience in the planning, design and management of a number

of engineering projects in the PRC.

SERZERAIRAF) WLS Holdings Limited | —Z2Z+4 4% Annual Report 2007



o5 N i B PN i Ay

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Ffhied > == ARSI
BAN G Z A ERGE G Rl o 22584 0 FERR
AE— AIMAARSEE o e F A A s P K&
ZATEHERSCE B - A F W e A G2
TR PR R A R R A R
B o 28 S 1 — ] B B o Tl = A5 T B o s L
PR LT A AL M 104E 2 % R K&
AT P T AR AR ER o

RS

7

WA o T TR AR A
FERLIHD o fBCHR AT 0 B AT TR B A (SR Bt
B o [ ST A MERR AT A i v AR AR B A > I
J B SERERE 20 4F o TR TR RR T /5 SEAE B R
T 30 B e O B R ST 27 R A R 2
B H o I Se AR A 26 T v 2E S5 2 e HLAT I
1ZREE o i T ARF AR A IMAA LB >
Py — W 4 BT IR T R 2 R Sl
S B G T R R AT 2 AR AL 5[]
R EAT W AR RARRER o A 7 T i R
PRI RE i/ TR A I S e e U
(B A s 0 TR B ) s df ATk - 0/ A il 4
PSS R FE R S SR A R o

BRUOMEE - U TUR R S ERREMAA
SEP o MEAT A W] 4 g 2 ) R I A R
NRIZHER - WHTEHE MRS - KEER
Frar U RS R R e 2 g E -
ORI % 20 2 40 S i — (A SER I N 2 2
622 B & e > A B2 07 2 @ SRR E
T2 HE R BT R R0 o MR R e
e R B Ry % TR JE A BT R
B o BREAT BTz 2 it TREARER AN » IR 4fs
AT Y 5 R BURF 2 BUBs TAEZ4F © W Se 4 H Al
VAR B BT PRI H 2 T F AL -

Mr. Lee Wai Kuen (2484 ) , aged 33, is the financial controller of the Group
and the Qualified Accountant of the Company. Mr. Lee joined the Group in
January 2006. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lee
has over 10 years of working experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management with an international accounting firm and with companies listed

in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom.

Mr. Au King Wah ([ 53 ) | aged 55, is the general counsel of the Group. He
holds a bachelor of laws (honours) degree from the University of Wales in the
United Kingdom. Mr Au is admitted as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong and had been a practising solicitor for over 20 years. He is also admitted
as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales, and is an Associate
member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, London. Mr. Au has wide
knowledge in areas of corporate and commercial matters. Before joining the
Group in July 2004, he had been an in-house lawyer for a well-known listed
jewellery company in Hong Kong and participated in the successful shares
restructuring of its group in the PRC. He also has extensive experience in
litigation including civil litigation on commercial and construction matters.
Mr. Au had also taught on banking law at the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and gave lectures on company law and

different commercial law topics for the Hong Kong Management Association.

Mr. So Yu Fai, David ( # ¥ ¥ ), aged 49, joined the Group in 2006 as a
director of Skylon International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a member
of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and also a member of the
Chartered Institute of Building. He had served on a number of committees
of these three professional bodies over the last 20 years and has an in-depth
knowledge of professional matters related to a wide variety of construction
standards and ethics. Mr. So has an honours UK degree in building economics
and an Australian master degree in project management. In addition to his
wide experience in construction works, he also worked for the Australian
Federal Government as an administration officer for several years. Currently.

Mr. So is working on the Macau Venetian project as project director.
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Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen ( 5% f ## ), aged 53, is the general manager of the
Gondola Division of the Company and responsible for the electrical and
mechanical (“E&M”) projects. He holds a master of science degree in
engineering business management from the University of Warwick in the
United Kingdom. He is a registered professional engineer and is a member of
The Institution of Mechanical Engineers and The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers. Before joining the group, he worked for The Jardine Engineering
Corporation for 15 years. He has extensive experience in E&M engineering
works and the local construction industry, specialising in project management,

engineering design work, technical support and construction supervision.

Mr. Lin Keung Wah (#i3ii#%) , aged 49, is a general manager of a subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. Lin has 18 years of experience in the design, construction,
supervision and contract administration of various civil and structural
engineering projects ranging from foundations, buildings, bridges and
steelworks before joining the Group in September 2005. He holds a bachelor
of engineering degree in civil engineering and recently obtained a master of

science degree in geotechnical engineering from the University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Ho Ting Suen, Eric ( fif & %8 ), aged 52, is the general manager of the
GRC Division of the Company. Mr. Ho has more than 25 years of professional
experience in the construction field and is knowledgeable with the property
development and construction management of projects in Hong Kong,
Macau and PRC. He is a corporate member of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers, Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, Royal Institution of Chartered

Surveyors and Chartered Institute of Building.

Before joining the Group in October 2005, Mr. Ho had worked for several
renowned Hong Kong developers over a period of more than 19 years. His
extensive working experience in project management, contract administration,
tendering management and construction management enables him to manage
the projects from inception to completion efficiently and professionally with a

proven track record of success.

Mr. Yau Siu Kwong (FEJEJ6) , aged 35, is a senior manager of the Company.
He joined the Group in July 1997 and is responsible for R&D, marketing
and business development. He holds a bachelor of science degree from the
University of Alberta, Canada and a master of science degree in environmental
management from the University of London, Imperial College of Science,
Technology and Medicine. He is a member of the Institute of Environmental

Management and Assessment.
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Ms. Luk Man Nar, Daisy ( PE %2 ¥ ), is a personnel and administration
manager of the Company. She worked with Gammon Construction Limited
for 13 years before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in December 1995. Ms. Luk holds
a master of business studies degree from Liverpool John Moores University,
a diploma in administrative management from the Institute of Administrative
Management of the United Kingdom and a certificate in personnel
management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a member of

the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management.

Mr. Kwong Chi Kin (J#5%) , aged 40, is a senior quantity surveyor of the
Company. He holds a master of science degree in construction management
from the University of Bath in the United Kingdom. Mr. Kwong joined the
Group in 2004 and has 18 years experience in contract administration of
large scale projects in Hong Kong and the PRC including housing estate

development, highway, railway and power plant construction.

Mr. Lui Chun Man, Ronald ( ¥ & 3 ), aged 34, is a senior project manager
of the Fitting Out Services Division of the Company. He has obtained an
Advanced Certificate of Management from the Construction Industry
Training Authority and has extensive experience of over 9 years in site project
management. Mr. Lui joined the Group in August 2003 and his expertise is in

the field of false ceiling, interior decoration and fitting out services.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to establishing
good corporate governance practices and procedures. The maintenance of high
standard of business ethics and corporate governance practices has always
been one of the Group’s goals. The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective management,
successful business growth and a healthy corporate culture, thereby leading to

the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise a quality
Board, sound internal controls, transparency and accountability to all
shareholders. By applying rigourous corporate governance practices, the Group
believes that its accountabililty and transparency will be improved thereby
instilling confidence to shareholders and the public. Throughout the financial
year ended 30 April 2007, the Group has complied with the code provisions
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has, since the amendments
to the GEM Listing Rules regarding corporate governance practices were first
proposed by the Stock Exchange, continued to monitor and review the Group’s
progress in respect of corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.
Meetings were held throughout the year and where appropriate, circulars and
other guidance notes were issued to directors and senior management of the

Group to ensure awareness to issues regarding corporate governance practices.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board, which currently comprises 10 directors, is collectively responsible
for supervising the management of the business and affairs of the Group.
Details of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman and the other directors of the
Company are set out in the Directors’ Report. All directors give sufficient time

and attention to the affairs of the Group.

The presence of four non-executive directors, of whom three are independent,
is considered by the Board to be a reasonable balance between executive
and non-executive directors. The Board is of the opinion that such balance
can provide adequate checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of
shareholders and of the Group. The non-executive directors provide the Group
with a wide range of expertise and experience so that independent judgement
can effectively be exercised as well as ensuring that the interests of all
shareholders are taken into account. They are also responsible for participating
in Board meetings, dealing with potential conflicts of interest, serving on the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, scrutinizing the Group’s
performance and reporting. Through their active participation, they provide
their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and the committees
on which they serve so that the management process can be critically reviewed

and controlled.

In full compliance with rule 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive directors and at
least one of them has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Group has received from
each independent non-executive director an annual confirmation of his
independence and the Group considers such directors to be independent in
accordance with each and every guideline set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. No independent non-executive director has served the Group for

more than 9 years.

All independent non-executive directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the directors. In addition, there is
no material relationship among members of the Board save that one executive

director is the spouse of the Chairman.

“ZTLEEHR  Annual Report 2007 | ERZEAR AT WLS Holdings Limited



g g f

o B A B R S BRAT 2 ek
EOMK > EREFIABASZH - rA#ES
feRcE oRCHLRey ok o SV R VRS R G BT
DAGRAS T8 4 1 A 1 7 il T 81 A
L o 4 v h B R A P A SRR

5 AR R

A7 R 1A ST A A I A B R 091 24 A < I

o6 SigES
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD MEETINGS

The full Board regularly meets in person at least four times every year.
The directors all participate in person. At least 14 days’ notice of all board
meetings were given to all directors, who were all given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for discussion. The Company Secretary assists
the Chairman in preparing the agenda for the meeting and ensures that all

applicable rules and regulations in connection with the meetings are observed

MRAG o e KA 5 1) %fi&ﬁiﬁﬁ#ﬁ@%%@ SRR and complied with. The finalised agenda and accompanying board papers are
B R B R P = AR ol HF - then sent to all directors at least three days prior to the meeting.
BEEZELFWNA =1+ HIEFE > Ehagit During the financial year ended 30 April 2007, six board meetings were held
BITANWE ko A A B g R AR sk and the following is an attendance record of the meetings by each director:
T
R Ak B
Number of R
Meetings attended/ Attendance
WmH Attendants Total percentage
WATHE S Executive Directors
BRI L So Yu Shing 7/7 100%
i Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 7/7 100%
B Ip Ping Hong, Antony 717 100%
VLER 7 Kong Kam Wang 7/7 100%
(Rl Kan Siu Lun
(A ZZENF+—H T = HEZRT) (appointed on 23 Nov 2006) 2/2 100%
IR Woo Siu Lun 6/7 86%
FHATH R Non-Executive Director
ERE Hui Tung Wah 77 100%
L AT E S Independent Non-Executive Directors
ok 5 I Sritawat Kitipornchai 7/7 100%
w A Rl Yeung Po Chin 7/7 100%
e Lam Kwok Wing 77 100%

JRE R G E BT 2 Gk h o T
AL R S > AS I BUR B R i AR A
o B e LR AT PRIVAEE A TR - K
ol B AR AR PRE o BT AR H W AR
ZFAE IR T AR WA BT -

During regular meetings of the Board, the directors discuss and formulate the
overall strategies of the Group, monitor financial performances and discuss the
annual and interim results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and decide

on other significant matters. The execution of daily operational matters is

delegated to management of the Group.
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The Company Secretary records the proceedings of each board meeting in
detail by keeping minutes, including the record of all decisions by the board
together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). Drafts
of board minutes are circulated to all directors for comment and approval as
soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on request by any director.

All directors have access to relevant and timely information at all times as the
Chairman ensures that management will supply the Board and its committees
with all relevant information in a timely manner. They may make further
enquiries if in their opinion it is necessary or appropriate to request for further
information. They also have unrestricted access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, who is responsible to the Board for providing
directors with board papers and related materials and ensuring that all proper
Board procedures are followed and that all applicable laws and regulations
are complied with. If considered necessary and appropriate by the directors,
they may retain the service of independent professional advisers at the Group’s

expense.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a substantial
shareholder or a director, such matter will be discussed through an actual
meeting and will not be dealt with by written resolutions. Independent non-
executive directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings

dealing with such conflict issues.

The board committees, including the audit committee and the remuneration
committee, have all adopted the applicable practices and procedures used in

board meetings for all committee meetings.
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THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Chairman, Mr. So Yu Shing, is responsible for the Group’s overall strategy
and business development. The Chairman determines the broad strategic
direction of the Group in consultation with the full Board and is responsible
for the macro top-level decisions with regard to the overall business directions

of the Group.

Mr. Kong Kam Wang was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 1 January 2007. The authority and responsibility for running the
Company’s business and implementing the Company’s strategies are carried
out by the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer, with the
support of the Executive Directors, is responsible for the strategic planning of
the different business functions and the day-to-day management and operations

of the Group.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All directors, including non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors, must keep breast of their collective responsibilities as directors and
of the business of the Group. As such, the Group provides a comprehensive and
formal induction to each newly appointed director upon his/her appointment.
Briefings and orientations are provided and organised to ensure that the new
directors are familiar with the role of the Board, their legal and other duties as
a director as well as the business and governance practices of the Group. Such
programmes are tailored to each individual director taking into account their
background and expertise. The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
will continuously update all directors on the latest developments regarding the
GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure

compliance of the same by all directors.

All directors also participate in continuous professional development
programmes provided or procured by the Group, such as external seminars
organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh their knowledge

and skills in relation to their contribution to the Board.

Each director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter on a yearly
basis, disclose to the Group the number and nature of offices held by
such director in public companies and organizations and other significant

commitments.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted procedures governing directors’ securities
transactions in compliance with Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Confirmations have been obtained from all directors in compliance with the
Rules. Relevant employees, who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Group, are also subject to compliance
with guidelines on no less exacting terms than those set out in the Rules. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company during the financial
year ended 30 April 2007.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2006. The Chairman of the
committee is Mr. Yeung Po Chin, an independent non-executive director of the
Company. Other members of this committee include Dr. Sritawat Kitipornchai

and Mr. Lam Kwok Wing, both being independent non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for formulating and
recommending to the Board the remuneration policy, determining the
remuneration of executive directors and members of senior management of the
Group, as well as reviewing and making recommendations on the Company’s
share option scheme, bonus structure, provident fund and other compensation-
related issues. This committee consults with the Chairman on its proposals and
recommendations and has access to professional advice if deemed necessary.
The Remuneration Committee is also provided with other resources enabling

it to discharge its duties.

The specific terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on

the Group’s website. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All the executive directors of the Company have each entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years. All the above-
mentioned service contracts are continuous until terminated by either party
giving to the other not less than three months’ notice in writing, or by payment

of three months’ salary in lieu of such notice.
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The non-executive directors (including the independent non-executive
directors) have no fixed term of office but are subject to the provision of
retirement and rotation of directors under the articles of association of the

Company.

All directors, including the executive and non-executive directors, would
retire from office by rotation and are subject to re-election at the annual
general meeting once every three years. In accordance with Articles 99 and
116 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Kan Siu Lun, Mr. Kong
Kam Wang, Mr. Woo Siu Lun and Mr. Lam Kwok Wing will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, would offer

themselves for re-election.

According to the Company’s articles of association, directors appointed to fill
casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first annual general meeting
after their appointment and shall be subject to re-election by shareholders. All

directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects. The Board is also
responsible for preparing the financial statements of the Company, which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group on a going-concern
basis, and other price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures.
The management of the Group provides all relevant information and record
to the Board enabling it to make the above assessment and to prepare the

accounts and other financial disclosures.

In full compliance with rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Audit
Committee, established in 2001, is currently chaired by Dr. Sritawat
Kitipornchai, an independent non-executive director, and the other members
are Mr. Yeung Po Chin and Mr. Lam Kwok Wing, both being independent non-

executive directors of the Company.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing
auditing firm of the Company within one year on the date of his ceasing to be

a partner or had any financial interest in the auditing firm.
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There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors

during the year under review.

The Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring the Group’s financial
statements, annual and interim reports and the auditors’ report present a true
and balanced assessment of the Group’s financial position; reviewing the
Group’s financial control, internal control and risk management systems; and
reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices. Other
duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its specific terms of reference

which is posted on the Group’s website.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties. The Company’s Annual Report for the year ended 30 April
2007 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

For the financial year ended 30 April 2007, the Audit Committee has held four

meetings. The individual attendance record of each member is as follows:

Hw Ak B
Number of %
meetings attended/ Attendance
e H Attendants Total percentage
ok 7 Sritawat Kitipornchai 4/4 100%
W i Yeung Po Chin 4/4 100%
NEES Lam Kwok Wing 4/4 100%

RAFIREAMAFERZ BGIA Gl e
Gk AT AEEG TR RRGY
W R R UCE AT AR - U AT AT R
] 1 A A% 2% B 9 sl A B 1A R0 2 B M
BERFERZEEGNEMNE > DUtREER
FOBR A UEZ A

The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of all Audit Committee meetings.
In line with practices consistent with Board meetings and other committee
meetings, draft and final versions of Audit Committee meeting minutes are
circulated to all members of the Audit Committee for comments, approval and

record as soon as practicable after each meeting.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board with the Audit Committee are responsible for maintaining sound
and effective internal control systems for the Company to safeguard its
assets and shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing the effectiveness
of such systems. The Board will from time to time conduct a review of the
Group’s internal control systems. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system, covering financial, operational and

compliance controls and risk management functions during the year under

review.

In such review, the Board has considered factors such as changes since the
last review, scope and quality of management’s monitoring of risks; incidence
of significant control failings and weaknesses identified; and effectiveness

relating to financial reporting and compliance with the applicable laws and

regulations including the Listing Rules.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the overall strategic
development of the Group’s business. All directors have formal letters of
appointment setting out key terms and conditions relative to their appointment.
Due to the diversity and volume of the Group’s business, responsibility in

relation to the daily operations and execution of the strategic business plans

are delegated to management of the Group.

All committees, namely the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, have specific terms of reference clearly defining the authorities
and responsibilities of the respective committees. All committees are required
by their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to their decisions,

findings or recommendations, and in certain specific situations, to seek the

Board’s approval before taking any actions.

The Board review, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the Board to different

committees to ensure that such delegations are appropriate and continue to be

beneficial to the Company as a whole.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and
employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to
its shareholders. The commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive and
transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can be reflected in many

aspects.

In endeavouring to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders, the
annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. All the directors of the Company make a special
effort to attend the Company’s general meetings so that they may answer any

questions from the shareholders.

The Chairman was also actively involved in organizing, and personally held
the annual general meetings in 2006 and all previous meetings of the Company
in order to ensure that shareholders’ views were communicated to the Board. A
separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate

issue at the annual general meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed from time to time
to ensure the Company conforms to the best practices regarding corporate
governance. The annual general meeting circular, which is circulated to
all shareholders at least 21 days prior to the holding of the annual general
meeting, sets out the details in relation to each resolution proposed, voting
procedures (including procedures for demanding and conducting a poll) and
other relevant information. At the beginning of the meeting, the Chairman
indicates (except those where a poll is required) to the meeting the level
of proxies lodged on each resolution and the balance for and against such
resolution. At the Company’s 2006 Annual General Meeting, all the resolutions
were dealt with on a show of hands and Tengis Limited, the Company’s Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar, was engaged as scrutineer to ensure the votes

were properly counted.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders through its annual,
interim and quarterly reports. The directors, company secretary or other
appropriate members of senior management also respond promptly to inquiries

from shareholders and investors.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To strengthen its relationship with investors, the Company regularly meets
with analysts and holds interviews with reporters and columnists of the press

and other economic journals.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 30 April 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are set out in notes 41,

17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2007 are set out in the

consolidated income statement on page 50.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKO.5 cent per
share for the year ended 30 April 2007 (year ended 30 April 2006: HK0.4 cent)
with scrip option. Particulars of the scrip option arrangements will be mailed
to shareholders on or about 7 September 2007. The dividend will be payable
on 5 October 2007 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on 31 August 2007. The Register of Members will
be closed between 27 August 2007 and 31 August 2007 (both dates inclusive)
during which no transfer of the Company’s shares will be effected. To qualify
for the aforesaid final dividend, all completed transfer forms, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with Tengis Limited, the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by 4:30 p.m. on 24 August 2007.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group purchased an investment property at a cost
of HK$7,483,000. The investment properties of the Group were revalued
at 30 April 2007. The increase in fair value of investment properties of
HK$1,517,000 was credited to the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 30 April 2007. Details of the movements in the investment properties of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired various property, plant and equipment at a
cost of HK$12,468,000. The buildings of the Group were revalued at 30 April
2007. The surplus arising on revaluation of HK$1,373,000 was credited to the
consolidated income statement to the extent of HK$167,000 and the balance
of HK$1,206,000 was credited to revaluation reserve for the year ended 30
April 2007. Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 30

April 2007 were as follows:

SEELE AN

2007 2006

T THIT

HKS$’000 HK$’000

By s 15 Share premium 20,639 17,463
{458 145 ) Retained profits 3,110 2,257
23,749 19,720

HRYE P 2 B 5 A AL (BB 327 > AT
2 ey i 18 AT A8t 1) BBER S AT YRR B - MR
AN T 2 R AR AR R - 0 B B BE S A
TrIRE B AR > A RIZHA RE ) SR HOH S
AR PR 2 A o

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 32 of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying distributions
or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
of Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in

the ordinary course of business.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report

are:
Executive directors

Mr. So Yu Shing (Chairman)
Mr. Ip Ping Hong, Antony
(appointed as Vice Chairman on 1 January 2007)
Mr. Kong Kam Wang
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 1 January 2007)
Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca
Mr. Woo Siu Lun
Mr. Kan Siu Lun
(appointed as Executive Director on 23 November 2006)

Non-executive director
Mr. Hui Tung Wah

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Sritawat Kitipornchai
Mr. Yeung Po Chin
Mr. Lam Kwok Wing

In accordance with Articles 99 and 116 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Kan Siu Lun, Mr. Kong Kam Wang, Mr. Woo Siu Lun and Mr.
Lam Kwok Wing retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

All executive directors of the Company have each entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years. The service
contracts are continuous until terminated by either party giving to the other not
less than three months notice in writing, or by payment of three months salary

in lieu of such notice.
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The non-executive directors (including the independent non-executive directors)
have no fixed term of office but are subject to the provision of retirement and

rotation of directors under the Articles of Association of the Company.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS

At 30 April 2007, the interests of the directors and their associates of the
Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Future Ordinance (the SFO ) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
Growth Enterprises Market (the “GEM Listing Rules”) to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Bty 2 58 Long positions in shares
O Bs (1) Shares
P9t % 7 B fiARAdn
Number of ordinary shares held BARAZE S
VN & KIiGHEzE Percentage of the
Personal Family issued share capital
EHMEH Name of director interest interest of the Company
RIS E Mr. So Yu Shing 252,710,000 81,600,000 (5t a) 53.1%
(note a)
BRiigg i+ Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 81,600,000 252,710,000 (Fff#Eb) 17.1%
(note b)
HJR B E A Mr. Woo Siu Lun 19,360,000 - 4.1%
MR Y s Mr. Kong Kam Wang 300,000 700,000 (FffiEc) 0.2%
(note ¢)
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Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca is the spouse of Mr. So Yu Shing.

Notes:

(a)  The 81,600,000 shares are held by Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca.

(b)  The 252,710,000 shares are held by Mr. So Yu Shing.

(¢c)  The 700,000 shares are held by spouse of Mr. Kong Kam Wang.

(2) Share options

Details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company are set out

in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses details of movements in respect of the

Company’s share options during the year:

REBBASE REBELE
HA—H  BhEGE WHETH
ATBEMIR (B R WK B ESAER ) i MARATBE Exercised WRATHE

HHE A B Exercisable period Exercise  Outstanding during the  Outstanding
Name of director Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2006 Period  at 30.4.2007
T
HKS$
BRLEE “EETHERA-+—H giq_ﬁﬂﬁ +/\H 0381 4,500,000 (1,500,000) 3,000,000
M. So Yu Shing 21 May 2002 EENFERAZTLHA
28 May 2003 to 27 May 2009
“EEFMEZANLA FERE_A+ZH 0.094 4,500,000 (4,500,000) -
5 February 2004 ?——$ A+—H
12 February 2005 to 11 February 2011
Rl Lt “ERTHERLAZT—H giq_ﬁﬂﬁ +AH 0.381 4500000 (1,500,000) 3,000,000
Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, 21 May 2002 EENELA LR
Rebecca 28 May 2003 to 27 May 2009
“EEFMEZANLA FERE_A+ZH 0.094 4,500,000 (4,500,000) -
5 February 2004 ?——$ A+—H

12 February 2005 to 11 February 2011
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
IR R-%% Lk
i Wit WH=TH
TrH (ERR A AR 4 WATH Exercised WAL B
FE i B0y Exercisable period Exercise Outstanding during the Outstanding
Name of director Date granted (both dates inclusive) price at 1.5.2006 period at 30.4.2007
B
HKS
FRBLE SRETERACH-R RCEEEELACTAR 0381 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
Mr. Woo Siu Lun 21 May 2002 ERFNERACTLA
28 May 2003 to 27 May 2009
CEFNEZARA 1 55 X0 0.094 100,000 (100,000) -
5 February 2004 BRI AT—R
12 February 2005 to 11 February 2011
A SRETERACH-R RCEFEEELACTAR 0381 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
Mz Kong Kam Wang 21 May 2002 ECRFNERA AR
28 May 2003 to 27 May 2009
SEFNEZARA BoZZREZATZR 0,094 300,000 (300,000) -
5 February 2004 BRI AT-R
12 February 2005 to 11 February 2011
27,400,000 (12,400,000) 15,000,000

A N A A AR AT RO o

Wi bSO 5 3 A - AR R R B 2 R
ALt “ B FLAEN H =4 H R A2 ] 5
SFOAT ] R 325 P 2 J AR ~ B P 03 % A 5 o
AATATHE i B R

Yt LB Ay i 2 2 K

B [ 2 BB AR T I PR 2 WiEAE | — B P i 2
B o A AT ] o (] AR 2 ) S ECAT ] 2 B T 2
RIS RT SLAT A PR > B A R A
LN/ RER DR RPN Pl s R e
M ss > e 2 MM 18 Ll F 2 T2
TR EAT ] SR A 24 W] 8 5 2 MR SR C R 4R N AT
(%A HER] -

No options were granted during the year.

Save as disclosed above, none of directors or their associates of the Company,
had any interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures

of the Company or its associated corporations at 30 April 2007.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors Interests in Shares and
Share Options”) at no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right

during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors, the
register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO disclosed no person as having a notifiable interest or

short position in the issued share capital of the Company at 30 April 2007.

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-

executive directors are independent.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 30 April 2007, the aggregate amount of turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
74% of the Group’s total turnover and the turnover attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 32% of the Group’s total

turnover.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest

suppliers were less than 30% of the total purchase.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the

Group’s five largest customers.
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RS2 R B b
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R
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A S5 P S5 A R T R SR T S

sk

R > A FE 283 K Ho A48 591,000 #
77: °

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company

to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 29 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 30 April 2007.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the Company or any
of their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any

business which competed or might compete with the business of the Group.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Company made charitable and other donations amounted

to HK$91,000.
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“EREEEA S THA

AUDITORS

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) resigned as the auditors
of the Company with effect from 30 April 2007 and the Board appointed
Messrs. Moore Stephens to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Deloitte. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general

meetings of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Moore Stephens.

On behalf of the Board

So Yu Shing

Chairman

25 July 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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MOORE STEPHENS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

905 Silvercord, Tower 2 Jg"
30 Canton Road WY,

Tsimshatsui ﬁﬁ
Kowloon
Hong Kong ==

="
Tel : (852) 2375 3180 e

Fax : (852) 2375 3828 Al
E-mail : ms@ms.com.hk Bat
www.ms.com.hk JIrH
To the Shareholders of WLS Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WLS Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 115, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 30 April 2007, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in

the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 April 2007 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Moore Stephens
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 July 2007
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

BE-—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

ZRRLE ZERTNF

2007 2006

! T#T T

NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000

ek Turnover 4 220,006 148,503
SHEE R Cost of sales (183,308) (118,436)

Eevill Gross profit 36,698 30,067

HAd e A Other income 6 851 501
1THUE Administrative expenses (26,945) (22,813)

FEEYZE 2 AN E B Increase in fair value of investment properties 1,517 500

ME BB Surplus on revaluation of buildings 167 311
Tl AR Finance costs 7 (4,686) (2,505)
JREAL B 8 7] 2 224 Share of results of associates (66) (15)

A 3 ] 2 ) B 2 24 Share of results of jointly controlled entities (€)) 378

A 11 Ve A Profit before taxation 7,533 6,424
BiIE Taxation 8 (1,171) (1,587)

ASAE B i ] Profit for the year 10 6,362 4,837

DI A A Attributable to:

A FEIRER FRA A Equity holders of the Company 6,646 4,517

DRURR RS Minority interest (284) 320

6,362 4,837

EATBLE Dividend paid 11 508 2,287

BB ) — FeAR Earnings per share — Basic 12 w4l WAl

HK1.44 cent HKO0.99 cent
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AR AAR
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

“RE L TR
2007 2006
! T#T T
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B e Non-current assets
ELSLLTIES Investment properties 13 14,600 5,600
LE NN & ] Property, plant and equipment 14 30,947 22,005
TAATAR B UH Prepaid lease payments 15 4,795 1,821
7R Goodwill 16 3,138 3,138
ﬁ/‘ Wk o ) M Interests in associates 17 - 66
A S [ 42 il B A 2 ME 2 Interests in jointly controlled entities 18 591 594
54,071 33,224
it B Current assets
TE AL IE Prepaid lease payments 15 124 47
ety Inventories 19 1,261 1,654
JEG SR Bills receivable 534
JEE IR 3K Trade receivables 20 70,793 36,556
JEN A4 TREZIE Amount due from customers for contract work 21 20,875 31,302
T AT {5 [ 4 S I Retention monies receivable 14,517 6,133
FAATEIE ﬁf/\ K Prepayments, deposits and
A e LI&( other receivables 5,478 2,735
WEWH{‘? Iﬁ Amounts due from associates - 161
JE I 3 Hﬁfﬁﬂﬁﬁ%m T8 Amount due from a jointly controlled entity 795 669
SRATAE R R4 Bank balances and cash 11,548 5,046
125,925 84,303
Uy £ 4 Current liabilities
JE AT B R B A JRE A} 3 T Trade and other payables 23 22,556 15,439
TEAT % F A4 TAEE0E Amount due to customers for contract work 21 15,666 3,983
JREAST R ] 46 T Retention monies payable 4,986 5,119
JEAST B3 TE Tax payable 1,456 1,303
RlE &) & E Obligations under finance leases 24 194 172
SRATEEK Bank borrowings 25 39,618 22,301
RATIE L Bank overdrafts 27,543 18,153
112,019 66,470
VR S Net current assets 13,906 17,833
B BT ) £1 4% Total assets less current liabilities 67,977 51,057
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REFELFEMA=—1+H At30April 2007

ZRRLE —EFTNE

2007 2006
{5 T#xL THETT
NOTES HK$°000 HK$’000
B NER Non-current liabilities
RlE &) & E Obligations under finance leases 24 67 132
SRATEEK Bank borrowings 25 12,006 4,278
R FE R TE Deferred tax 26 2,690 2,534
14,763 6,944
53,214 44,113
JBe7As e i Capital and reserves
k&N Share capital 28 4,762 4,575
bt Reserves 48,939 39,741
PN SRR DN Equity attributable to equity holders
JREA b E £ of the Company 53,701 44316
DRI R AR Minority interest 30 (487) (203)
53,214 44,113
HS0E NS HZ 56 B mER —EXLHELH The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 115 were approved and
b H AR g AR KA - LR F authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 July 2007 and are signed
ANERAEE on its behalf by:
#ROK, Wi IR B
SO YU SHING WOO SIU LUN
EH E=H
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-—TTLFA=1HILF/Z Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

AR AR R A AMEAY
Attributable to equity holders of the Company H¥
B e GO A RRIEA JBeACHEG
Share Share Merger Revaluation ~ Retained #H  Minority W
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
TH#T TH#T T THT T THT TH#L TH#T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
REZERF At 1 May 2005 4,575 17,463 2,222 - 17,826 42,086 (523) 41,563
iH—H
AR B A Profit for the year - - - = 4517 4517 320 4837
EfRE Dividend paid - - - - (2,287) (2,287) = (2,287)
RERENRE
fA—H At 1 May 2006 4,575 17,463 2222 - 20,056 44316 (203) 44,113
AR R Profit for the year = = = = 6,646 6,646 (284) 6,362
EffRE Dividend paid - - = = (508) (508) - (508)
BATRE B Issue of scrip dividend 61 1,261 = = (1,322) = = =
Gigkd g Exercise of share options 126 1,915 - - - 2,041 - 2,041
A Revaluation surplus = = = 1,206 = 1,206 = 1,206
REZRLAE
WH=1+H At 30 April 2007 4,762 20,639 2,222 1,206 24,872 53,701 (487) 53,214
ffsE - Notes:
(1) REFRLFWA=1H > AREEZ R R (1) At 30 April 2007, the retained profits of the Group included accumulated losses of

A 35 A AR 4 F B 72 0 ] 2 BRSS9 143,000 W5
JC (ZFRENE © AR 77,000 #70) ©

Q MREIEZELENA=1+H AEHZHREE
Il A 455 I A A S [0 3 (] 428 o) BE B 2 R B i A
488,000 ¥ 7T ( —ZRFNAF « {8 6 A1 491,000 #s
JL) °

() ALEZ A GRS A L R8T 2 RA T E
DIHRBURIEA SRR —FE—F+—A ==
H AT 2 4 2 AL I A TR JB 2 ) 2 3 AT BB AR
T2 2% o

)

3)

HK$143,000 (2006: accumulated losses of HK$77,000) attributable to associates of the
Group.

At 30 April 2007, the retained profits of the Group included retained profits of
HK$488,000 (2006: retained profits of HK$491,000) attributable to jointly controlled

entities of the Group.

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal amount
of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange for the nominal value for the
issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation
on 23 November 2001.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

BE-—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

ZRB LA TR
2007 2006
T#T THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
BB EH Operating activities
IR i ¥ Profit before taxation 7,533 6,424
LR B & TE A L Adjustments for:
FE A Interest income (28) (1)
JE A B A% N ) ZE 4% Share of results of associates 66 15
JHRE Ak [ 2 7 L A Share of results of jointly controlled entities 3 (378)
Bl i A Finance costs 4,686 2,505
gk o3 A3 L R Release of prepaid lease payments 66 47
s Depreciation 3,399 2,696
Y - R R R Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (60) (10)
SRR Allowance for doubtful debts 612 1,899
FE 2N B e Increase in fair value of investment properties 1,517) (500)
M A BR Surplus on revaluation of buildings 167) (311)
T S S AR Operating cash flows before movements 14,593 12,386
Bleint in working capital
7 & R Decrease in inventories 393 356
W SR i Increase in bills receivable (534) =
JE AT B 2 84 T Increase in trade receivables (34,849) (13,002)
MEWE T &4 TR H0H Decrease (increase) in amount due from
W (3 customers for contract work 11,130 (9,430)
JE AR ] 4 3RO (B8 a4 (Increase) decrease in retention monies receivable (8,384) 1,547
TSI - $i 4 M HAh (Increase) decrease in prepayments, deposits and
WSERIE (B b other receivables (2,857) 2,049
JE WS BER 2N ) SR TE D Decrease in amounts due from associates 161 110
JHEE A ] 22 o) B A e I S Increase in amount due from a jointly controlled entity (126) (570)
AT B 3 R JELAth 1 A5} 0 0B Increase in trade and other payables 7,117 1,460
¥
AT F &4 LA 0E Increase (decrease) in amount due to customers
Hm (i) for contract work 11,683 (1,162)
JEAT A [ 4 2k TE R i (J820) 347 (Decrease) increase in retention monies payable (133) 1,125
BB BH Bl & H Net cash used in operations (1,806) (5,131)
B A v A 5 Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (883) (149)
B A5 HoAth, R VA HE [ Bl Tax paid in other jurisdiction — (1)
AR IR s I AR Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 21 9
HRA BB 282 Bl 405 Net cash used in operating activities (2,668) (5,272)
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BE-—TTLFA=1HILF/Z Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

BRI
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

“RE L TR
2007 2006
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
B R Investing activities
2 B Interest received 28 1
E G Purchase of investment property (7,483) =
I FE AR Addition of prepaid lease payment 3,117) =
W2 - WE At Purchase of property, plant and equipment (12,182) (2,695)
HEY)ZE ~ FiE KM 152KTE  Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 857 10
BEYEEH P B4 Net cash used in investing activities (21,897) (2,684)
Y37 Financing activities
BT Dividend paid (508) (2,287)
EATFLE Interest paid (4,664) (2,468)
LA Rl AL 2 Finance lease charges paid (22) 37
B SR T New bank borrowings raised 119,908 48,740
fEIRERAT K Repayment of bank borrowings (94,863) (45,619)
SRATIE S N R AR Net increase in bank overdrafts 9,390 9,471
{25 F B A A R Repayment of obligations under finance leases (215) (648)
A7 {60 i S A Exercise of share options 2,041 —
RHREEHB 4T Net cash from financing activities 31,067 7,152
B4 BB A5 H 3 Net increase (decrease) in cash and
(W) T cash equivalents 6,502 (804)
EPZBE KRB ESEEH Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 5,046 5,850
SRR BIE BB SHBH - Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,
T AT R M B & represented by bank balances and cash 11,548 5,046
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BE-—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information to the

annual report.

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of scaffolding and
management contracting and other services for the construction and building

works.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,

which are also the functional currency of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which include all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis

except for certain properties which are measured at fair values.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
preparation of the financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2007 are
consistent with those adopted in the preparation of the financial statements for
the year ended 30 April 2006, except for the adoption of the new and revised
HKFRSs as explained below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the following new

HKFRSs, amendments and Interpretations:

HKAS 19 (Amendment)

HKAS 21 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4

(Amendments)

HKEFRS 6

HKFRS-Int 4

HKFRS-Int 5

HK(IFRIC)-Int 6

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8

Employee Benefits — Actuarial Gains and

Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures

Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast
Intragroup Transactions
The Fair Value Option

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
Resources

Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease

Rights to Interests arising from
Decommissioning, Restoration
and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

Liabilities arising from Participating in a
Specific Market — Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment

Applying the Restatement Approach under
HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in

Hyperinflationary Economies

Scope of HKFRS 2

The adoption of the above new HKFRSs, amendments and interpretations does

not result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies and has

no significant effect on the results for the current or prior accounting periods.

Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.
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BE-—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of

the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 30 April each year.

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the Company

controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or

made up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by other

members of the Group.

All inter-company transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated

on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets
consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is

able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition for which the agreement date is before 1
January 2005, represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant

subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill, the Group has discontinued amortisation
from 1 May 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating unit to

which the goodwill relates may be impaired.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for which the agreement
date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment

losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented

separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition
of a subsidiary is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in the income statement. An impairment loss

for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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BE-—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Goodwill (Continued)

On subsequent disposal of subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on

disposal.

Investments in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the associate,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or

made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant

associate.

Joint venture

Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity of the

entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Joint venture (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly controlled
entities are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted
for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
of changes in equity of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled

entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the Group,
unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the jointly controlled entity, except to the extent that unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case, the

full amount of losses is recognised.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Construction contracts/Management contracting services/Gondolas or

parapet railings installation services

When the outcome of a construction/services contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised on the percentage
of completion method, measured by reference to the proportion that costs
incurred to date bear to estimated total costs for each contract. Variations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that

they have been agreed with the customer.

When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will

be recoverable.
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BE-—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Sales of gondolas are recognised when the title is passed to customers.

Provision of services are recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Investment property

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
property is measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss

for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and included in the profit or loss in the year in

which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than buildings, are stated at cost less

subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Buildings are stated in the balance sheet at their revalued amount, being
the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does
not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at

the balance sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of buildings is credited to
the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised as an expense, in which case
the increase is credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation
of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable

revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair value of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account

of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful
lives on the same basis as owned assets or the term of the relevant lease,

whichever is shorter.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss in the year in

which the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

The prepaid lease payments which represent upfront payments for leasehold
land are initially recognised at cost and released over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.
Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.
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BE-—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at
their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the

liability. Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a

reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the consolidated
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,

as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and
receivables (including bills receivable, trade receivables, retention monies
receivable, other receivables, amounts due from associates, amount due from a
jointly controlled entity and bank deposits) are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase
in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered

into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out

below.
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BE-—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, retention monies
payable and bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

(i)  Share options granted to employees of the Company and vested prior to
1 May 2005

The Group did not recognise the financial effect of these share options
until they were exercised. Upon the exercise of the share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share capital at the
nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded in the share premium
account. Options which lapsed or cancelled prior to their exercise date

are deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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BE-—TTLFA=1HILF/Z Forthe year ended 30 April 2007
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(ii) Share options granted to employees of the Company on or after 1 May
2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight
line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity

(share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Net realiable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are charged to the income statement by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet, as measured by
the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to estimated total costs for the

contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.
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BE-—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Construction contracts (Continued)

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,

the expected loss is recognised as an expense.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as amount due from
customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as amount due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in the balance
sheet as advances received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet
paid by the customers, are included in the balance sheet within trade and other

receivables.

Impairment — other than goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which

case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which

case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are

charged as an expense as they fall due.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of group entity are presented in the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of each entity are expressed in
Hong Kong dollars, which are the functional currency of the Company, and

the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are

measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are included in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the exchange reserve).
Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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BE-—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also

dealt with in equity.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumption concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of giving a
rise to a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below:

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 30 April 2007, the
carrying amount of goodwill was HK$3,138,000. Details of the recoverable

amount calculation are disclosed in note 16.

Allowance of doubtful debts

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful debts when there is
objective evidence that receivables balances are impaired. The balances of
the receivables are based on the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the effective rate computed at initial recognition. The directors
involved a considerable amount of judgement in assessing the ultimate
realization of these receivables including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their

activity to make payments, additional allowance may be required.

Construction contracts

The Group’s profit or loss arising from construction contract is determined
by reference to the latest available budgets of individual construction contract
prepared by the Group based on management’s best estimates and judgments.
Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated by

management.
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4. BEW TURNOVER
ZRB LA TR
2007 2006
T#T THIT
HK$’000 HK$°000
Ry AR [ R TR LA Contract revenue in respect of construction and building
TR Z & #li g works for the provision of
— MRS R — scaffolding services 85,313 107,361
— B IR — fitting out services 40,190 20,887
EHA AR Management contracting services 79,544 6,118
M TAES - B & e Gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment
HENE B 2 42 4 R KEE IR BS installation and maintenance services 14,959 14,137
220,006 148,503
5. AREHR SEGMENT INFORMATION

A EHHBE

B E Y A5 S 1 B = A 2 o SR ALK
(1) 2% 2 5 J e TR 4R AL A 2 % i I A B IR
W o (i) 7 AR R LR R AL A 4IRS
K (i) AT TAE & - Pyt Jog IesE s bl 2 %
B RAEE RS -

(A) Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into three
operating divisions: (i) scaffolding and fitting out services for the construction
and building works, (ii) management contracting services for the construction
and building works, and (iii) gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment

installation and maintenance services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

ZRRLY 2007
gz INCOME STATEMENT
M TR
Il e
PR i3S, X A5 3
i TR ik TR M2 %5 K
TR 2 2 R A e s
B e R R A5 2B Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management parapet railing
fitting out contracting and access
services for the services for the equipment
construction construction installation and
and building  and building  maintenance A
works works services Consolidated
TH#0 TH#0 T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
Wtk REVENUE
RS & Total external sales 125,503 79,544 14,959 220,006
E'3) RESULT
Pan Segment result 7,688 8,563 (641) 15,610
At A Other income 851
TG N EE Increase in fair value of
B investment properties 1,517
R A 2 R Surplus on revaluation of
buildings 167
ARG B AR SEBH 3¢ Unallocated corporate
expenses (5,857)
Al A Finance costs (4,686)
JENL W25 N 7] 72 645 Share of results of associates (66)
R ) 2 o) B Share of results of jointly
2L controlled entities @A)
A 11 Ve A Profit before taxation 7,533
i IH Taxation 1,171)
AR A 35 ) Profit for the year 6,362
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5. ABER @)

(A) FEHB2 B )

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

YR f R BALANCE SHEET
MM TiER
i Fi 8 %
PR Ty X e A A 3%
TR S Y M2 %5 K
TEOCPIZR R o Hepkar B A s
B e A5 R A5 R RBs Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management parapet railing
fitting out contracting and access
services for the services for the equipment
construction construction installation and
and building  and building  maintenance A
works works services Consolidated
T#x T#x T#x T#L
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
¥ ASSETS
Iy IEE Segment assets 90,230 26,312 18,749 135,291
JASL IR ) E e Interests in jointly
T4 controlled entities 591
JRE s [ 2 ) B Amount due from a jointly
A controlled entity 795
ROBAEE = Unallocated corporate assets 43,319
AR A A AR Consolidated total assets 179,996
fifE LIABILITIES
A K Segment liabilities 32,058 8,129 2,467 42,654
RO AZEA E Unallocated corporate liabilities 84,128
ZEe BB Consolidated total liabilities

126,782
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

HAb ¥R OTHER INFORMATION
MM TS
MR R i i e % e
TREHE  BREREE SBSHZKE
ik TRk 33 3%
) &3:9% B RRBE Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management  parapet railing
fitting out contracting and access
services for the  services for the equipment
construction construction installation and
and building and building maintenance A A
works works services Unallocated Consolidated
T#E T#n T T#IL T#E
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
BARE Capital expenditure 4,596 21 70 7,781 12,468
e Depreciation 3,557 6 422 117 4,102
AT AR Release of prepaid lease
payments - - - 66 66
IR Allowance for bad and
doubtful debts 195 417 - - 612
BB A TERE Increase in fair value of
investment properties - - - 1,517 1,517
[ Sy Surplus on revaluation of
buildings - - - 167 167
B -~ FiE K52 1t Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 60 - - - 60
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HE-FTLEIH=+HILEZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

ZRBANE T
plas INCOME STATEMENT
M TS
7y fR 1 B2
VigeiE Y RN B eAEAE
ik TR s TR bt 2 ke
FRALHNZE RS 2 PRI R AR TS
BB IR A HI RS Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management  parapet railing
fitting out contracting and access
services for the services equipment
construction for the installation and
and building construction and maintenance o
works  building works services Consolidated
T THTT THETT THETT
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Wz REVENUE
HEIHHN Total external sales 128,248 6,118 14,137 148,503
E 3 RESULT
Pan Segment result 6,886 908 1,195 8,989
oAb g A Other income 501
BB ZE 2 INTAEEIEN Increase in fair value of
investment property 500
M AL R Surplus on revaluation of
buildings 311
ARA3 AR E B 3 Unallocated corporate
expenses (1,735)
Al A Finance costs (2,505)
JEfL W25 N 7] 72 645 Share of results of associates (15)
JREAL L] $2 il BE i 2 2648 Share of results of jointly
controlled entities 378
A 11 Ve A Profit before taxation 6,424
FiIH Taxation (1,587)
AR A i ] Profit for the year 4837
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

YA R BALANCE SHEET
TS
7y fRE 1 12
R RN B NCHERE &
i TR s TR M Z 4 T
PO AE g PRI KBRS
BB IR A HI RS Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management  parapet railing
fitting out contracting and access
services for the  services for the equipment
construction construction  installation and
and building and building maintenance E
works works services Consolidated
T T T T
HKS$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
¥ ASSETS
NEEE Segment assets 87,622 3,384 14,517 105,523
TN F) 2 ME R Interests in associates 66
JASLIF 2 ) B Interests in jointly
Wt controlled entities 594
JEWS IR 5\ ) SR Amounts due from associates 161
JRE s [ 42 o B Amount due from a jointly
FeE] controlled entity 669
Ko BiASZE G Unallocated corporate assets 10,514
AR A B AR Consolidated total assets 117,527
fifE LIABILITIES
EAE Segment liabilities 17,867 3,325 1,987 23,179
RAOEASZERE Unallocated corporate liabilities 50,235
LEE B EAE Consolidated total liabilities 73,414
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(A) Business segments (Continued)

HABYERH OTHER INFORMATION
AMTIES
BEER G B e
TR REsiEE  ABRN
A e TR BAEIAS
JEBRE  EHAHRE Gondolas,
Scaffolding and Management parapet railing
fitting out contracting and access
services forthe  services for the equipment
construction construction installation and
and building and building maintenance KA Fotes
works works services Unallocated Consolidated
T T T TH#L TH#T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
BARRL Capital expenditure 3,123 18 2 - 3,143
Ik Depreciation 2,983 3 420 206 3,612
TR E SRR Release of prepaid lease
payments = - - 47 47
IR Allowance for bad and
doubtful debts 1,899 - - - 1,899
BB A TERE M Increase in fair value of
investment property - - - 500 500
[ Sy Surplus on revaluation of
buildings - - - 311 311
HEEE - BE K Gain on disposal of property,
pdie plant and equipment 10 = = = 10
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5. &R ) SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(B) B (B) Geographical segments

A A ] 2 A8 TIROBS A s~ UL A ] A [ The Group operates with customers situated in Hong Kong, Macau and other
ZRF o TR 2 I - S EE jurisdiction. The following table provides an analysis of the revenue, carrying

i BR TR S AR B S 43 #r amounts of segment assets and capital expenditure by geographical markets:
R 1 3 e i SEREEZ AR
BEH Carrying amount of Capital expenditure
Revenue segment assets incurred during the year
“ZRUE CETAE SRR CTTAE CRRLE SZTNE
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Ti#x T T Tt Ti#x T
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000

ik Hong Kong 122,798 137,313 141,011 108,856 11,992 3,130
U Macau 78,441 10,533 35,331 8,086 476 13
Cfth ] [ Other jurisdiction 18,767 657 3,654 585 - -
220,006 148,503 179,996 117,527 12,468 3,143
6. JLABBA OTHER INCOME
it 2 S CRTNAE
2007 2006
T#xL THETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEYIZE - BE KA Gain on disposal of property, plant and
Z s equipment 60 10
FLEMA Interest income 28 1
AU > FIBRZE S Rental income, net of outgoings of nil
(CBEAE ¢ ) (2006: Nil) 266 159
HETE A Sundry income 497 331
851 501
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7. BB FINANCE COSTS
BB LA TRETINAE
2007 2006
T-#0 THsoo
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
AT RS Interest on bank borrowings
— JENHAE N A E R — wholly repayable within five years 4,511 2,468
— HoAth — others 153 _
Pl A 43S 2 I E Interest on obligations under finance leases 22 37
4,686 2,505
8. B TAXATION
e 27 2 i TRETINAF
2007 2006
T-#0 THsoo
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
FLIEBH S5 - The charge comprises:
FHEAIEE Hong Kong Profits Tax
AR Current year 266 771
TEAE LN /R 1A Under provision in prior years 38 32
304 803
At ) 90 M [ — ASAFBE Other jurisdiction — current year 711 444
ARAERLIE (P 5E 26) Deferred tax (Note 26)
AL i Current year 136 111
TEAFBEA L Fs Underprovision in prior years 20 229
156 340
1,171 1,587

T F 1B C HAE A 5 RERRBL N A1) 2 17.5% B4 Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% of the estimated assessable
REE o profit for the year.

TG Al ) 9 [ T S A 2 o T T AR A B ) Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rate applicable in the
REIR > 78 FA R R o relevant jurisdiction.
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B2 T HEPH=+HIF4/E  For the year ended 30 April 2007

8. Bt

A A 2 T JE B S SRR 5 Wi i 2R BT 2 B A i

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation

Fll 2z SHRRANE per the consolidated income statement as follows:
BB ZRENF
2007 2006
T#L T
HK$°000 HKS$’000
BB Al e Al Profit before taxation 7,533 6,424
A RSB 17.5% Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
R BIH of 17.5% 1,318 1,124
JEILEE AR Z R Tax effect of share of results
i 5 . 2 of associates 12 3
A A ] 2 ] B B S A Tax effect of share of results of jointly
B 5 28 controlled entities 1 (66)
ANAT IR 2 B 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
B R 2 tax purpose 1 584
B ERRR 2 Wi A 2 T 75 5 24 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (295) (55)
KT HERR 2 BiIE 2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 457 407
B 5 2
&y 1 48 RSl R R 2 B TE S 1R Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (279) (430)
FEFRAEBLTE 2 A JE B Under provision of deferred tax in prior years 20 229
AR USRI 15 B Under provision of Hong Kong Profits
ZR R Tax in prior years 39 32
A A ] AR T 5 A o Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
YNGR NG E a4 operating in other jurisdiction (255) (203)
HAth Others 152 (38)
AR A B TE B S Tax charge for the year 1,171 1,587
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HE-FTLEIH=+HILEZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

9. WHEIEBME DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(@) A (a) Directors’ emoluments
L TREOETE O WRB e

B Lai DB Kong  IpPing Kan Hi  B&EE BB HER
SoYu  Yuen Mei, Woo Kam Hong,  SiuLun, Tung  Sritawat Yeung Lam it
Shing  Rebecca  Siu Lun Wang  Antony Philip WahKitipornchai ~ Po Chin Kwok Wing Total
T  T#x  THx T Ti#xc  T#x  TEx  TEx  THx Tk TiEx
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS000

“RRLE 2007
e Fee - - - - - - 100 9 100 100 39
M4 Other emoluments:
FERIAHA Salaries and other benefits 2,310 1,030 490 990 1,150 383 - - - -6,
IR AR Contribution to retirements
benefits schemes 12 12 12 12 12 6 - - - - 66
Hms Total emoluments 230 1,042 502 1,002 1,162 359 100 9 100 100 6,781
ik % ETR A
BRI Lai I8 Kong Ip Ping Hui BisHIE it A4
SoYu  Yuen Mei, Woo Kam Hong, Tung Sritawat Yeung Lam &
Shing  Rebecca SiuLun Wang Antony Wah  Kitipornchai PoChin  Kwok Wing Total
Tt Tkt  Fkcr FEc TEr FEx TEx FiEr TEcr TEx
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
“EENE 2006
106 Fee - - - - - 100 100 100 100 400
AN : Other emoluments:
Fre RH MR Salaries and other benefits 2,00 900 600 840 1,100 - = - - 5,640
RIS Contribution to retirements
benefits schemes 12 12 12 12 12 - - - - 60
i 48 Total emoluments 2212 912 612 852 1,112 100 100 100 100 6,100
(b) e B4 (b) Employees’ emoluments
/‘\ — P — e 5 . . . L. . .
MEFFLERZFFNE > ARADA The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2007 and 2006 were all
1= M= ay. N= 5 =X . 9 . .
B AL AL TS S directors of the Company and details of their emoluments are included
TFHEANI L o

in above.
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10. ACAE B i F PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ZRELAE TRTINAF
2007 2006
T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
A B B B FIER (FEA) Profit for the year has been arrived at after
AT charging (crediting):
SRR Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 612 1,899
BRI 4 Auditors’ remuneration 530 680
THERR B3 BH 2 2 A7 B AR Cost of inventories recognised as expense 646 940
E Depreciation
HE&E Owned assets 3,942 2,851
ARE A 5 2 & Assets held under finance leases 160 761
4,102 3,612
W A S AENS S5 Less: Amount capitalised to construction contracts (703) (916)
3,399 2,696
TE AN AR B R T i B Release of prepaid lease payments 66 47
HEYZE -~ RRE Bkt 2 s Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (60) (10)
T AT S A 2 Minimum lease payments for operating leases
A 4 in respect of land and buildings 1,959 2,042
W RS A AL S Less: Amount capitalised to construction contracts 1,310) (1,158)
649 884
B TR (5 M 4) Staff costs including directors’ emoluments 47,350 35,253
W RS A AL S Less: Amount capitalised to construction contracts (33,753) (24,997)
13,597 10,256
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BE—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

11. Bftks DIVIDEND PAID
“RE L CRBNAE
2007 2006
T#x T
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T TSR B AR S AT 0.4 s A1l Final dividend paid in respect of 2006 of 1,830 2,287
(ZRZAAR 0.5 WAL ZRBIBE HKO0.4 cent (2005: HKO.5 cent) per share
DAHEAR S Scrip dividend issued in lien of cash (1,322) -
508 2,287
BT AR R B R R AT 0.5 ¥l Final dividend proposed in respect of 2007 of
(BTN - 0.4 WMl Z AR HKO.5 cent (2006: HK0.4 cent) per share 2,832 1,830

NASAEBEIRAT 2 BER 491,322,000 00 (—FF
PN F) TOREA N AV TN AR A
= H AR EER AR R RN
H A 2 AR08 5 DA AR S 5 3 DA R A 2 45T -

HE T LENH =+ H kA REREIR A

JE Gl UBR G T 2O ] DA B ) 2 %

25 R i U 25 RS ¥ 36 H I L 38 17 2 566,474,200
e A

A R IR R B R B 0.5 s Al (=T F A
0.4l > ZHAGRBCHU I 8 B RE AR R
A > SR AR o

12. HBERN

BRERBRTIRBEARFEERANFEGEIFA
N R A s ) B B 45 47 37 3 8 47 in RE ST 1 i S
461,769,855 B (- FEZIN4F ¢ 457,500,000 f%) w1
ﬁ o

R A T LR B N A
= 2 B RAT GRS R MR » WOl
2 B BB -

Of the dividend paid during the year, approximately HK$1,322,000 (2006: Nil)
were settled in shares under the Company’s scrip dividend scheme announced
by the company on 6 September 2006 in respect of the final dividend for the
year ended 30 April 2006.

The amount of the final dividend proposed for the year ended 30 April 2007,
which will be in cash form with a scrip dividend option, has been calculated
by reference to the 566,474,200 issued ordinary shares outstanding as at the

date of these financial statements.

The final dividend of HKO.5 cent (2006: HK0.4 cent) per share has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to the equity holders of the Company for the year and on the
weighted average number of 461,769,855 (2006: 457,500,000) ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented because the Company’s

outstanding share options as at 30 April 2007 and 2006 were anti-dilutive.
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13. BEWE INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Tison

HK$’000
Vg iR Fair value
M OEERERA—H At 1 May 2005 5,100
ISR Z B4 Increase in fair value 500
R FENRFENH=1H At 30 April 2006 5,600
N3 Addition 7,483
ISR Z B4 Increase in fair value 1,517
R_ZZ-LAENH =1H

7 B B A 7 s 2 W SEE AR T R R AR A
Ao MR AE KR - AL Z Y 2EB L
AP EBEREE B R ARIMERED
Eo RN EZLENA=1H > S ENER
Z R T B £ 14,600,000 #5 7T ( —ZF /S 40 A
=+H :5,600,000%#7C) °

REMZEYER -FZLFOA=THZ
ONVE TS AR M8 S A S Al (L R A 4
FE Al A R R R H AT 2 A S - 24T
SR S [ AR SR B 2o o A B A A A PR A R
Iy R R 52 % A R R A A B 2 R
B A R S B A A T AR B [
(E ) SRR KR o A A 1 I P (LA I
2 IRACTT 3555 WD) 26 2 5 5 (B A T R AE

A5 [ R 3 2 W 2E RS IR (BT )
SES R PR FLA ) %2 226,000 # 0 (ZFF
ZNAE 1 159,000 9C) o FEAR A M R %
FEAZ HEREHA -

At 30 April 2007 14,600

The Group’s property interests are situated in Hong Kong, held under a long
term lease and rented out under operating leases. The Group’s properties are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. At 30 April 2007, the carrying amount of such property
interests amounted to HK$14.6 million (30 April 2006: HK$5.6 million).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 30 April 2007 have
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited, independent qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group. Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited is a
member of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (“RICS”) and the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”), and has appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation, which conforms to International Valuation Standards, was arrived at

by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

The property rental income earned by the Group from its investment
properties, all of which is leased out under operating leases, amounted to
HK$226,000 (2006: HK$159,000). There are no direct operating expenses

arising on the investment properties in both years.
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14. ¥ ~ BB Kok fi PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
SRE BRI I %
3 Rtam B A KE
Rkt Metal  Gondolas ¥4  Furniture
Bt5*  Plantand  tubesand and related Motor and Bt
Buildings  machinery catwalk  equipment vehicles fixtures Total

Tk Tt T T T Tk Tk
HK$000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

JRA B COST OR VALUATION
REZFZRFHHA—H At 1 May 2005 2,800 1,043 25,687 4,101 5,899 5,494 45,024
RE Additions - - 2,426 - 448 269 3,143
HE& Disposals = = - - (60) - (60)
EYAR S Surplus on revaluation 250 = = = = = 250
REFZEAFENA=1H At 30 April 2006 3,050 1,043 28,113 4,101 6,287 5,763 48357
NE Additions 7,691 12 3,852 - 381 532 12,468
e Disposals = - (1,320) - - - (1,320)
By Surplus on revaluation 1,259 - - - - - 1,259
R EELFENH =1H At 30 April 2007 12,000 1,055 30,645 4,101 6,668 6,295 60,764
ALEE Comprising:
BAE At cost - 1,055 30,645 4,101 6,008 6,295 48,764
A EELEME At 2007 valuation 12,000 - - - - - 12,000
12,000 1,055 30,645 4,101 6,068 0,295 60,764
it DEPRECIATION
REZZRFRLHA—H At 1 May 2005 = 921 11,219 1,790 4,882 4,049 22,861
AF e Provided for the year 61 46 2,060 411 419 615 3,612
R Eliminated on disposals = = = = (60) = (60)
Al Eliminated on revaluation (61) = = = = = (61)
WEZEAENA=1H At 30 April 2006 - 967 13,279 2,201 5,41 4,664 26,352
RN Provided for the year 114 45 2,420 402 507 614 4,102
B Al Eliminated on disposals - - (523) - - = (523)
A Eliminated on revaluation (114) = = - - = (114)
REZZLFENA=1H At 30 April 2007 - 1,012 15,176 2,603 5,748 5,278 29,817
TR CARRYING VALUES
REZZLFNEHA=1H At 30 April 2007 12,000 43 15,469 1,498 920 1,017 30,947
REETNFENA=TH At 30 April 2006 3,050 76 14,834 1,900 1,046 1,099 22,005

A G AT AL A - DL AR SO The buildings of the Group are situated in Hong Kong and are held under

ZERD medium-term leases.
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14. ¥ ~ BB B i w0

VI3 ~ B B sk )3 0% ) B SR 545 R 1 4R S 47
r-a

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the

following rates per annum:

M5 Buildings FRAR A A HA B S0 4F ( DhScH & £ HE)
Over the shorter of the term of the lease,

or 50 years

R B b i Plant and machinery 20%
S EE AR Metal tubes and catwalk 10%
M LAE & 1A B s Gondolas and related equipment 10%
TRH Motor vehicles 20%
ELY &S Furniture and fixtures 20%

AEMIMTR _FFZEENA=1THZAF
(LT AR B 08 S A Sl L P A 07 7
A BRZA RS ] B3R T 2 fh (R 3L - w247 AR
A P ML R 2 o A% T A A B ) 3
PR S &R S = i
SO 8 A TR ) S A A A A I M [ £ B )
SERREER o AN FPfi 2 1 B PR A (E A R > I 22 T
A8 T 455 5 ST 26 2 50 5 A T R E

e A = 7 e AEEA T A > e JRE R AN W R F T
£5 14,781,000 7T (—FFIS4E 7,341,000 70)
R AL IR RN o

R OEELENA =+ H > AREHLIEEA
Fefy 2 R & B 2 MR T VR (E 49 £ 598,000 # IC
(—ZFFEINAE 11,025,000 #78) ©

The fair value of the Group’s buildings at 30 April 2007 has been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited, independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group. Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited is a member of the
RICS and HKIS, and has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The valuation, which
conforms to International Valuation Standards, was arrived at by reference to

market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

If buildings had not been revalued, they would have been included in these
financial statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation of
HK$14,781,000 (2006: HK$7,341,000).

At 30 April 2007, the net book values of motor vehicles of the Group include
HK$598,000 (2006: HK$1,025,000) in respect of assets held under finance

leases.
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15. BUATRLE RO PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
—RF LA ZERTINAE
2007 2006
T#o0 THETT
HK$°000 HKS$°000
R BTN BB AR At 1 May 2006/2005 1,868 1,915
H—H
s Additions 3,117 —
T AE A i R Released during the year (66) 47)
e 22 < = S e 27 S i At 30 April 2007/2006 4,919 1,868
MH=+H
Ve & A 2 Analysed for reporting purposes as:
T & Current asset 124 47
FEVRE) & Non-current asset 4,795 1,821
4,919 1,868

AL 2 AT B R E A - D AR A R The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land in Hong Kong

DE A WS AL B il held under medium-term lease.
16. FiE GOODWILL
T-#T
HK$’000
L% COST
AEERFEAHA—H At 1 May 2005 4332
TR A0 7 v B TS Y I 26 3 T Elimination of amortisation accumulated prior to the adoption
T 2 w8 of HKFRS 3 (1,194)
R ZEBNFER ZERZCFENA =1H At 30 April 2006 and 2007 3,138
ey AMORTISATION
AEERFEAHA—H At 1 May 2005 1,194
TR A0 7 v B T 2 Y I 26 3 T Elimination of amortisation accumulated prior to the adoption
T 2 w8 of HKFRS 3 (1,194)
A ZEERNE R —FEFLFEMA =10 At 30 April 2006 and 2007 =
Wi f#L CARRYING VALUES
HoERELENH=14H At 30 April 2007 3,138
MZETRENH =+ H At 30 April 2006 3,138

HEEEZRENA=1+HAIL > FHEIUE Until 30 April 2005, goodwill was being amortised using the straight-line
B FAL P  F AE A T AR o method over its estimated useful life of 10 years.
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16. W% @)

KR H ZETS & OF W 2 i R i B I 4 T & TR
WA % TS A 5 45 2 Bl A AR BEAV o P
Z R TH H 3,138,000 ¥ 70 )% 78 B047 e 45 Fff g /2
([ B0 1) 2 s AR & BBy fi il B 8 TeAf e
M 2 L4 RAEAEIRES o

T F 7 s A B A YR UV 5 3 R 4% - AR M 4F
B EEAT BBt o SO TR R AT AR SR
7 5 R SR A T (L

WE_FFLENA=1+HILFEER - A%LH
BB R E O ) I R A6 I o B
{H -

% L0 < AT ST e A AR of PR (B 2
HEREE o A B AT SRR TR T B AR
FHE o BT A SR E AR AR AR AL A
LI P A B A B S YRR RO 2 B R
B T AR TR TR 2 S A U ] B A SR R Iy S
e ARG B A 8.5% 7T H o #% LA A
< B A A TR AR R T S 1] A < TN B A
REHE o WA R BARTIRIERE R RE
P 364 T 85 55 Je 2 T e 7

17. BB A v Z B

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition,
to the cash generating units that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. The carrying amount of goodwill of HK$3,138,000 was wholly
allocated to cash-generating unit in gondolas and parapet railings and assess

equipment installation and maintenance services of a subsidiary (the “Unit”).

Upon the application of HKFRS 3, the Group tests goodwill annually for
impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be

impaired.

During the year ended 30 April 2007, the management of the Group
determined that there is no impairment of the Unit which goodwill has been

allocated.

The recoverable amount of the Unit has been determined on the basis of
value in use calculations. Their recoverable amounts are based on certain
key assumptions. All value in use calculations use cash flow projections
based on latest financial budgets approved by the Company’s management
covering a period of 5 years with zero growth rate, and at a discount rate of
8.5%. Cash flow projections during the budget period for the Unit are based
on the expected gross margins during the budget period. Budgeted gross
margins have been determined based on past performance and management’s

expectations for the market development.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

BB LA TRETINAF

2007 2006

Tt THsoo

HKS$’000 HKS$’000

JE BTSN R 2 BEE R Cost of investment in unlisted associates 200 200
JEAL Ui A% s 1 Share of post-acquisition losses (200) (134)

- 66
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17. B A b 2 BEAR (0

AT ERE AR H =+ H o B A R LR

BE—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the associates at 30 April 2007 are as follows:

B
A0 w By LBk AT
X sl 3, JBeAs 2 i F b
BREA BB Bi¥e Proportion of
Form of Place of B Ein nominal value of
W48 A vl 4 48 business incorporation/ Class of issued share capital EUE 90
Name of associate structure operation shares held held by the Company Principal activity
BM Technologies EzaiiifAva B R L SLAEle 36.36% HOEHEIR
Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary Investment holding
Wui Chun Building EEaiiifAva s SLAEle 36.36% FRALAEE R R IR
Material Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of repair and

A B A S T 2 g ) 22 S R H 2 5

set out below:

maintenance services

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is

B
ZRR L CRTIRAE
2007 2006
THT THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
A Total assets 16 747
A fEAE Total liabilities 90) (566)
(AfR) & FE Net (liabilities)/assets (74) 181
L e /N Group’s share of net assets
B of associates - 66
Wit Revenue _ _
ARAEJE R Loss for the year (255) (42)
A A 42 [ R A G W A ) Group’s share of results of associates
ZE for the year (66) (15)
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18. A3t [l e i B Z M Ak INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ZRELAE TRTINAF
2007 2006
T T
HK$°000 HKS$’000

[ ) e 2 Ok B Cost of unlisted investments in jointly

P& AR controlled entities 103 103
JREA e 4% v ) Share of post-acquisition profits 488 491
591 594

BREEZELEMNA=+H > EEEbEEERE Particulars of the major jointly controlled entities at 30 April 2007 are as
Ml ZREE T follows:

A4 i AT
JBeAR 22 i ¥ e 45
Fi3 ) R Proportion of
EBRAER g8 1 ER nominal value of
Form of Place of WA 33 issued share capital
NGBS business incorporation/ Class of indirectly held by eI
Name of company structure operation share held the Company Nature of business
MKP-Wui Loong Ry A AR Py I 49%  HEFREMIZE RS
System Scaffolds Incorporated Malaysia Ordinary Promoting scaffolding
Sdn Bhd (“MKP") systems
Waui Foo Engineering EAlIAwA it 2 50% FEAETE T M 2E
Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of climbing

scaffolding

AT EELFEDN A =+ H > MKP K B G At 30 April 2007, MKP has not yet commenced business.
kTS -
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18. 3L ) Pl B 8 2 2 (a0

7 A A 45 T LARE £ 15 81 MR - 1] 422 1l B A

(CONTINUED)

2 ET LA =+ HIFEE  For the year ended 30 April 2007

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s interests in

Z BB SRR B R T jointly controlled entities which are accounted for using the equity method is
set out below:
BB ZRTINAF
2007 2006
T#L T
HK$°000 HKS$’000
) E Current assets 1,548 1,405
I Non current assets 1,271 1,907
B Current liabilities (1,613) (2,131)
YA Income 2,057 4,372
B 2 Expenses (2,064) (3,598)
AR (FG18) A (Loss)/profit for the year @) 774
AT JBE AR 42 (8] MR A G ] 42 ol Group’s share of results of jointly controlled
Bl ek entities for the year 3) 378
19. #8% INVENTORIES
ZRB LA BTN
2007 2006
T-#0 THIT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
JERE— BAE Raw materials — at cost 1,138 1,569
R — AR E Finished goods — at cost 123 85
1,261 1,654
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20. HMEWCOHEK TRADE RECEIVABLES

] 4 4 fB il % 5 B2 it 2 A5 BT AR 4 A B 2 # A The credit terms given to each individual customer were in accordance with
FEE A AT AR B AL o TR AR R 8 43 the payment terms stipulated in the relevant tenders or contracts. The aged

HranT : analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

ZRFLE TRTNAE

2007 2006

T#0 THIT

HKS$’000 HK$°000

0—90 H 0—90 days 47,176 26,086
91—180 H 91 — 180 days 6,846 3,864
181—270 A 181 — 270 days 5,295 2,017
270 H Over 270 days 11,476 4,589
70,793 36,556

HHBLBIERR —FZLFMA =1+HZ The directors consider the fair values of the trade receivables at 30 April 2007
V- B AR 3 B T (AR © approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.

21. HEMC (HEAH) % B & 8 TR AMOUNT DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR

i} CONTRACT WORK
ZRELAE ZARTINAF
2007 2006
T#L T
HK$°000 HKS$’000
REER A fE#R TR ¢ Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date:
Yo B AN A Contract costs incurred to date plus attributable profits
Vs A U8 B TR 1R less recognised losses 308,000 143,712
L A % R A 3 T Progress payments received and receivable (302,791) (116,393)
5,209 27,319
Ve & i 4y Analysed for reporting purposes as:
TENRZ T4 4 TR Amount due from customers for contract work 20,875 31,302
TEATZ T A %) TR Amount due to customers for contract work (15,666) (3,983)
5,209 27,319
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22. oAb # & E

Al P 5 4 R R R R T <
BRI > 8 R H A BB ~ RO
) B 3 (7] 8 o A AR > DA R SR AT 45 R K B
e

JRE WS g ) B [ 2 ) O A SR AE A
G2 R R A -

SRAT A B D B B B0 A A5 [ P 55 B I JRT
AR B RAR B 2 S I SR AT A o A8 4R
ZERATHIERL 0 o 2 3 JEANSE 2 R o

HERRAZFER FEFZEFENA =+ HZ W
B 2 NP EBEARE R EAR

23, MEAT MRk B B0l ME Ak

JRE ASF B kB L A FE A K IEL 4D 4 B AR MR K
14,047,000 # 7T (—FZN4E ¢ 9,301,000#5T)
HIRBAMTIOT -

BE—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other financial assets include bills receivable, retention monies receivable,
prepayment, deposits and other receivables, amounts due from associates and

a jointly controlled entity, and bank balances and cash.

The amounts due from associates and a jointly controlled entity are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The bank balances

carry interest at rates ranging from 0% to 3% for both years.

The directors consider that the fair values of these financial assets as at 30

April 2007 approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of HK$14,047,000
(2006: HK$9,301,000) with an aged analysis as follow:

BB TRTINAF

2007 2006

T#L T

HKS$’000 HKS$’000

0—90H 0 — 90 days 13,381 8,719
91—180 H 91 — 180 days 315 255
181—270 H 181 — 270 days 117 117
270 H Over 270 days 234 210
14,047 9,301

8 2 B AT AR AR B FLA R A IR — R F £
DA =+ B Z AP EEARE AR EAR S -

The directors consider the fair values of the trade and other payables at 30

April 2007 approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.
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BE-—TTLFA=1HILF/ZE Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

24. WERLARYE OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
TARRLEI Ak TR AR AL LA X B
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
—RB LA TRTNF ZRB LA TR
2007 2006 2007 2006
Tt T T-#0 THIT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
—AF A Within one year 208 175 194 172
BB AEN In the second to fifth
(BiEE RW4E) year inclusive 80 135 67 132
288 310
B AR 2 Less: future finance charges 27 (15)
RS2 BE Present value of lease
obligations 261 295 261 304
W AR AR Less: Amount due within
A2 A Gk i one year shown under
BAEMEIE NR) current liabilities (194) 172)
4R B S AT 2 R 0A Amount due after one year 67 132

A5 ) 2 BOR Jy D B R A LB IR o It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles under finance
WHEFPRAZSF BE_FZLFNA=+ leases. The average lease term is three years. For the year ended 30 April 2007,
HOIEAERE > P E S B4R R A 2y 6 8 o FIlR the average effective borrowing rate was approximately 6% per annum. Interest
JIIA G #) B I E o B FHA 35 8 e R s S rates were fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis
e H OGSk s SRR G T S L HE o and no arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental payments.

A5 [ 2 il ECTH A AR I DA AT R R The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge
J5 X AEA over the leased assets.

G R ASE I 2 B A R YE 2 AP ETIR The directors consider the fair values of the Group’s finance lease obligations,
AR B G B R A H 2 R T 5 1) determined based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
Pl BifE - HEATBR I EAR A - discounted using the prevailing market rate at the balance sheet date

approximates to the corresponding carrying amounts.
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BE—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

25. BT R BANK BORROWINGS
“RE L TR
2007 2006
T#T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
SRATE K Z M Bank borrowings analysed as:
EEEiIRL Secured 26,942 15,778
A G A Unsecured 24,682 10,801
51,624 26,579
BEZE N LA T B PR R The borrowings are repayable as follows:
FRE R — K On demand or within one year 39,618 22,301
— A B AR More than one year, but not exceeding two years 1,172 4,278
AT 28 AR More than two years, but not exceeding five years 2,993 -
R A AR After five years 7,841 _
51,624 26,579
W A AR RS 2 BH Less: Amount due within one year shown under
(AR ARIE T 57) current liabilities (39,618) (22,301)
A —4E B S A5 2 FIE Amount due after one year 12,006 4278

7 S5 [ T A B 2k 3 DA T B (B 5 3 A TR S
o TERS AR E R TG AI R R - AT F
V5 B PR SR 6 ([ e B SO 3R ) 9 0.5 JEE 22 o £ 2
FIZNN0.75 )8 o (BTN« B HARE i
B HRI=R N 0.75 J&) o

R AR RAT R R T TS AR B AG
FERAH S B4 H 2 W IR G A R i 8
< BUE > HEAIS IR (A o

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and are
variable-rate borrowings as at the balance sheet date, bearing interest at
prevailing market rates, ranging from Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate (the
“Prime Rate”) minus 0.5% per annum to Prime Rate plus 0.75% per annum

(2006: Prime Rate to Prime Rate plus 0.75% per annum).

The directors consider the fair values of the Group’s bank borrowings,
determined based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted using the prevailing market rate at the balance sheet date,

approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.
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26. EHEBLIE DEFERRED TAX

I B T A I A A A B ROB AR A BE N R 2 The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the

BURIEBI I K (AR DA KA HEE) Group and movements thereon during the current and prior years.
ki BT 5
Accelerated
Be I s 41 tax Hfib H5it
Tax losses depreciation Others Total
T T THIT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RoBERERA—H At 1 May 2005 336 (2,756) 226 (2,194)
FEALGEE Charge to consolidated
TS income statement (43) (68) - (111)
AR R T Underprovision in prior years = 3) (226) (229)
R EFLNAEMH =+H At 30 April 2006 293 (2,827) - (2,534)
sEALE AR Charge to consolidated
income statement 133 (269) = (136)
AR EAS L Ft Underprovision in prior years (20) _ _ (20)
R _ZZLAENMA=Z1TH At 30 April 2007 406 (3,096) = (2,690)
AGEA H R AR 2R AEBLIE G 7 (B AR Details of unrecognized deferred tax assets/(liabilities) at the balance sheet

date are as follows:

ZEFLE ZERENE

2007 2006

T THson

HKS$’000 HK$°000

T R R IE B A Excess of tax allowances over depreciation (102) _
RARIE R IE 5 18 Unabsorbed tax losses 863 1,180
761 1,180

H 7 H 45 T 1 A0 U A v TR o AR R A I o The deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the financial statements

it 58 408 40E ol JEUO 7 o B T s 48 R RE AR PR N 4 due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses may be
L2 9 carried forward indefinitely.
27. JCfb B 4% OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

HCAth BA 5 7 60 455 B A5 R [ 4 3 IE % R AT Other financial liabilities include retention monies payable and bank
3 e overdrafts.

HRERHZER _EZLFMA =1 A Z M5 The directors consider that the fair values of these financial liabilities as at 30
BB 2 AT B B R T (AR A - April 2007 approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.
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28. AR SHARE CAPITAL
Ity ¥ H B
Number of shares Amount
T
HK$°000
A B THIEL 0.01 o 2 3 ik Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
IE ¢ Authorised:
R EERE R At 30 April 2006
“ELLENA=+H and 2007 800,000,000 8,000
CLEEAT R - Issued and fully paid:
A ZFEZNEMNA =1+ H At 30 April 2006 457,500,000 4,575
A% LARCAR B 2 AT e 4y Issue of shares pursuant
R BTNF to scrip dividend scheme for
FRIIEE (3L 1) 2006 final dividend (note (i)) 6,144,200 61
MR IR RE ) B4 T Issue of shares under share
e (B GE (i) option scheme (note (ii)) 12,550,000 126
RoZREAENA=1H At 30 April 2007 476,194,200 4,762
MEGE - Notes:
() REFBEANFESAZTLH AAFARES (i)  On 27 September 2006, the Company issued and allotted a total of 6,144,200
FENFEIUAN B 25T IO Z DUBRAC S 53 shares of HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$0.2152 in lieu of cash for
K o RUAF B 0.2152 U5 J6 2 BEAT K i 8 A 3k the 2006 final dividends pursuant to the scrip dividend circulars dispatched to
6,144,200 B TE (R 0.01 s TT Iy - DAARAS — shareholders on 6 September 2006. These shares rank pari passu in all respects
FENERMBLERE o 525 M0 B A R with the then existing shares.
TEAS T A A RS
) WERZE_FZTLFENA=1+HIEFEE (ii)  During the year ended 30 April 2007, 12,550,000 share options were exercised
12,550,000 173 S B HE HEAT i - T~ 25 5 A8 1 1 at an average subscription price of HK$0.1626 per share, resulting in the issue of
10.16263# 7T > R EE4T 12,550,000 A A 5 1 {ED 12,550,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company.
0.01 #EIT 2 AN Rl E L o
(i) WMHEHHE  R_FZFLERAZTZH & (iii) ~ Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 22 May 2007, Mr. So Yu Shing (“the
O ) S HEAT ARG R ([ 7)) B Vendor”), the Chairman and executive director of the Company, entered into a
O ) B e B AR R ET S B R R R (D) Placing and Subscription Agreement with the Company and the Placing Agent,
B 77 7 T L R i B AL ] G5 i R A D A pursuant to which (i) the Vendor has agreed to place and the Placing Agent has
Fic 65 JB 53 0.2 ¥ G =2 T 45 i 2 e i 45 e 2 & 3k agreed to procure the placing of 59,000,000 shares to the placees at the Placing
59,000,000 B A& 17y 2 P 85 B4 5 % (i) B 7 [A) Price of HK$0.2 per Placing Share; and (ii) the Vendor has agreed to subscribe
Fic g I R B IR A7 0.2 W5 I 2 R BEEART (55 74 i 5 for and the Company has agreed to allot and issue the Subscription Shares, which
18) M R AR A R ) i P B R B AT A S R i are equal to the number of the Placing Shares that it places under the Placing, at
TH i e 6 22 6 TR B H 2 BRI IRy » R the Subscription Price of HK$0.2 per Subscription Share. On 31 May 2007, the
FERLHERHA=1+—H > Bl RIS Placing was completed and the net proceeds of the Subscription amounted to
IR FAE LS 11,500,000 #ETCE H AR 28w © HKS$11.5 million were received by the Company.
(iv) MREFFELAEANHANHE - B BN A KL (iv)  On 8 June 2007, the Vendor entered into a Placing and Subscription Agreement

B R 7 it B AR Bk o AR () B R
= K B AR LR A 1) AR A DA A R L
J& 43 0.238 ¥ T 2 e 65 1B 1 i it B I 2 & 3t
31,000,000 & B 13 2 i 5 L4y 5 % (i) 22 7 Al &
25 I R M PR 073 0.238 5 IT 2 wR AR (R 45 A i
) TR B A ] [ 73 T S B AT AR A5 A
BTE T TRl 2 e IRy B E 2 RRIE Iy o iR
SETRAENAAH > SN AR
FKIE TR £ 7,200,000 ¥ TG L H A B SCRL ©

A

with the Company and the Placing Agent, pursuant to which (i) the Vendor
has agreed to place and the Placing Agent has agreed to procure the placing of
31,000,000 shares to the placees at the Placing Price of HK$0.238 per Placing
Share; and (ii) the Vendor has agreed to subscribe for and the Company has
agreed to allot and issue the Subscription Shares, which are equal to the number
of the Placing Shares that it places under the Placing, at the Subscription Price of
HK$0.238 per Subscription Share. On 20 June 2007, the Placing was completed
and the net proceeds of the Subscription amounted to HK$7.2 million were
received by the Company.
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29. Jilk JBeRE

REA N A BT — 4+ —H T H R
Z WEIRESH ] ([5HE] ) » AR RFEREG ([FHE
& 1) WA RERY I B AR A ) B AT AR B A R
Z RN B (f 45 A 28 7] S AT A B 2 ] =8
AT~ FEAT BB ST IR AT 2 =) e AN AR - DA
REEAR A ARy FEBENREEERRAE
T AR B o AR RT3 S 74 2 ) A o] L Ath B R RE =
W42 T 0 AR AT 2 o A P A 7 {8 i 7 LA
BT Z IRy HA B FERT I 2R R IR - A5
R AS S B AR B BT RAS 30% ©

PRIAT 877 = A8 3 303 P ol AR A2 N B 452 ) R 7
B2 2 PR (4 47 % 14 R A ok S )
M 2B AT Bl T RAT 2 2 BB - A
WA T C AT AL 1% > BRIF (a) MR
TR 5 (b) AL RS AR AR A Bt | FR
ISR o BRI T I R ZE A SEGURUE 1
HIT

REMEE Y R G AT o AR (a) 3
et B> A BT TR >
HEE R IR B AR s i g H g %
PR A2 RSB A B AR 2 T 5 (b) B AR
B FBCHE IR AL SR H - s e BT
A TURAFE A > Bk i iR b
H Al 5 H R SS P i H IR R T iR &
B R SR 2 P BT 5 (o) e T
{H 3 =F B RH A -

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on
25 November 2001 (the “Option Scheme”), for the primary purpose of
providing incentive to directors and eligible employees, the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) may, at its absolute discretion, offer full-time
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, to take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not, subject
to the conditions set out in the Option Scheme, exceed 30% of the issued share

capital of the Company from time to time.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued on the exercise of
options granted and to be granted (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to a grantee in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total
issued share capital of the Company in issue, unless (a) a shareholder circular
is dispatched to the shareholders; and (b) the shareholders approve the grant of
the options in excess of the limit referred to herein. A nominal consideration

of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of each grant.

The subscription price was determined by the Board, but may not be less than
the highest of (a) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the GEM as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
options or, where certain conditions set out in the Option Scheme apply, on the
date of the Board proposing such grant; (b) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares on the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the options or, where certain conditions set out in the Option Scheme
apply, the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares on the GEM
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of the Board proposing such grant; and (c)

the nominal value of the shares.
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29. JEBeRE ST ()

AR A B 2 MR o B PR A e L
HRIZN 01 ] 1 I R 2 B B A A7 0 - MEAR 4%
FEH 2GR o AT AT (G AR 2 0 T R A e
A B IBORE 2 R R+ 4F o ARERT B
Ak > Sl 08 ] 7 6 ZE 455 A R BB e S S ] 6 R
REFRBLH ATy AT (B — SR

BRI —FF 4+ —H+HH
&> AR

HE-FTLEIH=+HILEZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the terms
of the Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the Board
to each grantee that the period within which the option may be exercised shall
not be more than 10 years from the date on which the offer of the grant of the
options is made in accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme. There is
no general requirement on the minimum period for which an option must be
held or the performance target which must be achieved before an option can

be exercised under the terms of the Option Scheme.

The Option Scheme became effective for a period of ten years commencing

from 25 November 2001, the date of adoption.
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29. JEBeRE ST () SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

ENE B (ELREEE ) AireA 2w I ARORE 2 52 ) Details of movements in the Company’s share options held by employees

PRI ¢ (including directors) are as follows:
R=ZBNE RERRLA
HA—H WH=1H
FrEE JBLHE L H T HE S H
(BHEREH) Number of AT AR Number of
ZEBNE Bipm Exercisable period il share options Exercised Cancelled share options
2006 Date granted (both dates inclusive) Exercise price at 1.5.2006 during the year during the year at 30.4.2007
BT
HKS
i “EECERACH-R CEEEERACHARE 0.381 18,000,000 (3,000,000) - 15,000,000
Directors 21 May 2002 ZEENFEHAZTLH
28 May 2003 to
27 May 2009
“ZFME_ATH “ERREZAT AR 0.094 9,400,000 (9,400,000) - -
5 February 2004 “F——E"Jt-H
12 February 2005 to
11 February 2011
27,400,000 (12,400,000) - 15,000,000
(3= “ERRCEAACT-H ZFEREFRASTARE 0381 5,130,000 = (130,000) 5,000,000
Employees 21 May 2002 ZEENFERAZTLH
28 May 2003 to
27 May 2009
“ZFME_ATH “ERAEATAR 0.094 710,000 (150,000) (160,000) 400,000
5 February 2004 “F——EZJt-H
12 February 2005 to
11 February 2011
5,840,000 (150,000) (290,000) 5,400,000
33,240,000 (12,550,000) (290,000) 20,400,000
I (R
Weighted average exercise price 0.294 0.163 0.223 0.375
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29. JEBeRE ST () SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
R=ZF4 R=ZFAAE
fii—H WH=FH
(i LS TS HEL TS
(LB RAH) Number of A kB Number of
ZERAL AR Exercisable period Litid share options Cancelled share options
2006 Date granted (both dates inclusive) Exercise price at 1.5.2005 during the year at 30.4.2006
W
HKS
HE “FRFERAZA—H “EEZEERTARE 0381 18,000,000 - 18,000,000
Directors 21 May 2002 ZERNERAZT LA
28 May 2003 to
27 May 2009
“ZZME-HEA “ZEAF_A+T-HE 0.094 9,400,000 - 9,400,000
5 February 2004 “F——EZA+—H
12 February 2005 to
11 February 2011
27,400,000 - 27,400,000
B8 “EZERA-T-H “XEEEEAZTARE 0381 5,280,000 (150,000) 5,130,000
Employees 21 May 2002 ZEZNFRAZTLH
28 May 2003 to
27 May 2009
“EEWE-ATH “ZEAF-A+T-HE 0.094 850,000 (140,000) 710,000
5 February 2004 ZF——EZA+—H
12 February 2005 to
11 February 2011
6,130,000 (290,000) 5,840,000
33,530,000 (290,000) 33,240,000
il Sp=iitid
Weighted average exercise price 0.293 0242 0294

ATEELAENH=+H > REF# RS & At 30 April 2007, the number of shares in respect of which options had been
M AT 2 B R R B 2 B BB G AR granted and remained outstanding under the scheme was 4.3% (2006: 7.3%)
ez HE BT E 2 43% (T EENE of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

7.3%) ©
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B2 T HEPH=+HIF4/E  For the year ended 30 April 2007

29. JEBeRE ST ()

12t 2 B B RE A ZEOR 452ty B RE R 7 R A
BWE T ETCEM A =+ H Ik 4F B A A%
P52t B PR

30. A BB RBERR

A T — T B 2 W) 2 A BB SR ) A A 2 M
J& o~ 7D WBOR 2 FEAG SR - B D BUROR
JRE A AR e A o D BB R M A 2 M TR R

31. REFEBERY

REE ETLENA =+ HIREER > A%
) h Y T O R S AL e R AL A B LR IR
HAEZAR(E 49 381,000 %5 70 (- FFEINAE © 448,000
W0 e

32. WA

JREESEH > AR B T AR T 51 B2 A 2 A S M
PERE— e aRAT Rl A AR -

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Options granted must be taken up within a period of 7 days from the date of
grant. No options were granted during each of the two years ended 30 April
2007.

MINORITY INTEREST

The minority shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company has agreed to make
good the minority’s share of losses of the subsidiary, and accordingly, the
losses applicable to the minority exceeding the minority interest in the equity

is recognised as an asset in the consolidated balance sheet.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 April 2007, the Group entered into finance lease
arrangements in respect of assets with a total capital value at the inception of
the leases of HK$381,000 (2006: HK$448,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the Group has pledged the following assets as

securities against general banking facilities granted to the Group:

BB ZREINF

2007 2006

THT T

HK$’000 HKS$’000

BEY)E Investment properties 14,600 5,600
TE AL 2 IE Prepaid lease payments 4,919 1,868
i e Buildings 12,000 3,050

33. SRR

ATEERLFENA = H > REESL > &R
A2 [l R AT 85 2 DB A £ AE = m 4R AT 1E
8,619,000 5 7T ( ~F N4 © 4,627,000 7T) 2
SREAB AR o

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 April 2007, the Group provided counter indemnities amounting to
HK$8,619,000 (2006: HK$4,627,000) to banks for surety bonds issued by the

banks in respect of construction contracts.
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34.

Ay F A M N FE R R S AR R R
(THERE AR AT 1) A BRI e il — 24 MUK 2 7F
FARE IR R T L AR U A W SRR SN MR o AR
A B AN R o e R A o R MR A P 2B A T
W 2R At — SRR /5 58 & MR A PR R AR A B
TEHFRAAZ —TTH R °

35. 7K¥E

HE-FTLEIH=+HILEZ  Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

LITIGATION

The legal proceedings instituted by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Wui Loong System Scaffolds Company Limited (“WL System
Scaffolds”), against the main contractor had been settled out of court in early
April 2007. By the terms of the settlement, the main contractor made payment
of a sum of money to WL System Scaffolds in full and final settlement of all
claims that either party may have against the other arising out of the matters in

the legal proceedings.

COMMITMENTS

() EAKE (i)  Capital commitments
it 2 S CRTNAE
2007 2006
T#x THETT
HK$°000 HK$°000
BB - WS Kkt Capital expenditure in respect of property,
EL AT AMEAR A B plant and equipment contracted for but not provided in
B2 EAB X the financial statements _ 266
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BE-—TTLFA=1HILF/ZE Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

35. 7R¥E @) COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
(i) ROEAAA RS B 2k (ii)  Operating lease commitments and arrangements
RIEFE 23 RFN The Group as lessee
REEH o AR AR ] s R T A At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
AT B A R 2 A RE A 2 A A de (IR L B RE minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which
RYEIT - fall due as follows:
SRRUE EFTAF
2007 2006
T#0 THETT
HK$’000 HK$°000
—4E A Within one year 556 572
AR R AT (5 E R WAR) In the second to fifth year inclusive 4 240
560 812
RARFAL RIBIE T H AR B TEEY Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain of its
F4 o FlALISEI R =R ST - fle T office premises and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for an average
A = AE AR A o term of three years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years.
TR E [ 5 RN The Group as lessor
TAGEEH > A B BAFE Bk R 51 S AR A At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the
THESIEST L A4 following future minimum lease payments:
SRRUE  EFTAF
2007 2006
T THETT
HK$’000 HK$°000
—4E A Within one year 536 55
FERELE (WIEE RS In the second to fifth year inclusive 532 -
1,068 55
LA 48 i o B L 465 A — 4R AF A T 2 o Leases are negotiated and rental are fixed for terms of one year.
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36. 4RI

M OFEREELT A B AEEE AAL
] S AV B A ) R B B L2 e AR
St o MARERTH S MG NE Y E
ROLEGT 3 o R ST H » AL T R HAE
B R 5 1 A R v ) T R R B Uk
AZ 5% %R A AR S AR BL1L,000% 6 24
PR > RESMZ (LRI B R -

TG AR RN RR 2 B 1,200,000 70 (2%
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BE—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has arranged for all
qualifying employees of the Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries to
join the MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme
managed by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, both the Group
and the employees make monthly contribution to the MPF Scheme at 5%
of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation, subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per month and thereafter

contributions are voluntary.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement of HK$1,200,000
(2006: HK$1,045,000) represents contributions payable to the MPF Scheme
by the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1)  During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with

related parties:

ZRB LA TR
2007 2006
T#T T
HK$’000 HKS$ 000

SE[F] FE BE A jointly controlled entity
FEMIIRES 2 43 B S Subcontracting expenses of scaffolding services 686 971
S HIA Subcontracting income 165 907

SRR H BN - 2 S ERFE I RS IR AR E
AR A MR -

Details of the balances with the Group’s related parties are set out in the

consolidated balance sheet and respective notes.
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B

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(ii)) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during

the year was as follows:

“RR L e AN

2007 2006

THT THTT

HK$°000 HK$°000

s AR A Short-term benefits 6,323 5,640
RARAER Post-employment benefits 66 60
6,389 5,700

R BTN B <TG N 2 B E
10 A B A I\ R B B T 4 A%

E o

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the
Remuneration Committee or senior management having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.
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BE—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include bills receivable, trade
receivables, amount due from customers for contract work, retention monies
receivable, prepayments, deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
associates, amount due from a jointly controlled entity, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, amount due to customers for contract work,
retention monies payable and bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure

appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparts’
failure to perform their obligations as at 30 April 2007 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated
in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group is exposed to concentration of
credit risk as the carrying amounts of the receivables are arising from a limited
number of customers. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has policies in place for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,

the management considers that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are

banks and creditworthy financial institutions.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the changes in
interest rates relates mainly to the Group’s variable-rates bank borrowings and
bank deposits and balances. The Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. The management of the Group would monitor and manage its exposure

to fluctuation in interest rates.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash
and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. The Group aims at maintaining the flexibility in funding by
arranging banking facilities. Therefore, the liquidity risk is closely monitored

by the directors.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will

fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through transactions
that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily Macau Pataca and United States dollar. The Group mitigates this risk

by conducting transactions in the same currency, whenever possible.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

38. B R b 45 BE H B BOBOR (a0

DIANEEHE 2 & 2 S AR ¢

The financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are as

follows:
e 2 23 ZEREINF
2007 2006
T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
JEEW R 3K Trade receivables
THLFH Macau Pataca 25,206 2,424
JEN A4 TREZIE Amount due from customers for contract work
TR s Macau Pataca 198 4,142
JRE AR ] 4 3K IE Retention monies receivable
B Macau Pataca 5,005 12
TEAT A ~ $2 4 M HABMEIEKTE  Prepayments, deposits and other receivable
T Macau Pataca 264 183
SRAT A R M B4 Bank balances and cash
B Macau Pataca 2,240 10
NG Renminbi 151 381
Eon United States dollars 283 274
B 5 B oAb RS IE Trade and other payables
T Macau Pataca 5,460 825
&k 7T Euro 386 =
PNEEL: S Renminbi 10 10
H oo Singapore dollars 159 1,512
JEAT R F & 4 TR0 Amount due to customers for contract work
B Macau Pataca 5,929 106
JREAST £ e 48 3K Retention monies payable
B Macau Pataca 1,064 11
AT Singapore dollars — 36
A i IE Tax payable
B Macau Pataca 1,262 552
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el A R 7
HKFRS 7

U U R 2 8
HKFRS 8

G RHERIE 198 (B5T)

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

il (BB RERRZEES) — RS9It
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9

il (BB REARZES) — RS 1098
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10

i (BB R RE A E) — @8 115
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

i (BB R RE A G) — RS 125
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

RECENT ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
REPORTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards and

interpretations which may be/are relevant to the preparation of the Group’s

financial statements for the accounting period after 30 April 2007:—

SMTH : HFHE

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

R

Operating Segments

WA R SR

Presentation of Financial Statements:

Capital Disclosures

HAfNTE TR
Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives

H A B R (L
Interim Financial Reporting

and Impairment

A B i o YR 5 2 5% — S T R A B 2 B

HKFRS 2-Group and Treasury

Share Transactions

s A 2 B

Service Concession Arrangements

JRUAT sz &Iz
TR AR
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

20074E1H 1 H
1 January 2007

200941 7 1H
1 January 2009

200741 H 1 H

1 January 2007

2006%F6 A1 H
1 June 2006

2006%E11 H1H
1 November 2006

200743 H 1 H
1 March 2007

20084E1H 1 H
1 January 2008
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BE—FTTLFMA=—+HILF/E Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

RECENT ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
REPORTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 7 applies for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.
The standard requires disclosures that enable users of the financial statements
to evaluate the significance of the Group’s financial instruments and the
nature and extent of risks arising from those financial instruments and also

incorporates many of the disclosure requirements of HKAS 32.

The HKAS 1 (Amendment) applies for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2007. The revised standard will affect the disclosures on qualitative
information about the Group’s objective, policies and processes for managing
capital; quantitative data about what the Group regards as capital; and
compliance with any capital requirements and the consequences of any non-

compliance.

HKFRS 8 applies for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The
standard supersedes HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting” under which segments
were identified and reported on risk and return analysis. HKFRS 8 sets out
requirements for disclosure of information about the Group’s operating
segments, the products and services provided by its segments, the geographical

areas in which it operates, and its major customers.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these
new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, it has concluded that
while the adoption of HKAS 1 (Amendment), HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 8 may
result in new and amended disclosures, the other new and revised HKFRSs are
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and

financial position.

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 30 April 2007, the directors consider the Group’s ultimate controlling party
to be Mr. So Yu Shing.
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BE-—TTLFA=1HILF/ZE Forthe year ended 30 April 2007

41. ARAA FERIEA 9 GEN PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY

HE_ELZLFMNA =10 EERBAF (X5 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, which are limited liability companies,

HREEAH) F#FWF : at 30 April 2007 are as follows:
AR TR CEATBA
kibaE,/ CEATRAR kIS 2 i P
BRLE JBeA /g A Proportion of
Place of BA Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ HipR fully paid up issued share capital/
B s 2 ¥ 24 4 registration Form of share capital/ registered capital B4
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HE 53
Directly Indirectly
WLS (BVI) Limited SRIE TR HIRAF Egile 100% - BEEEK
38,510 % 7T
British Virgin Limited Ordinary Investment holding
Islands company US$38,510
EEEEARA il HIRAH viliie - 100%  HEBBY
10,000 75
Graceman Industrial Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Manufacturing of plastic ties
company HK$10,000
RIE B A ] Fits HIRAH viliie - 100%  HHEAHIES
10,000 # 75
Skylon International Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Gondolas rental
company HK$10,000
REEGEHHRA il HIRAH viliie - 100%  FRAbEERTRE
10,000 7C
Skyway Transport & Trading Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of transportation
Company Limited company HK$10,000 services
B TRARA A Fits HIRAH =vilie - 0% WL
1,226,667 0 85 - it - e
JoHes Bt
BB TR a2 %4
RAE IR
Sinogain Engineering Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Trading, design, sales,
company HK$1,226,667 repairs and maintenance of
gondolas and parapet

railings and access equipment
installation and maintenance
services
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41. A A L EEWE A 535 e PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

A AT AT IR A/
iklibaE,/ CETRAR kIR A 2 i P
BRLE JBeA /g A Proportion of
Place of b IN Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ HHEA fully paid up issued share capital/
B 2 5 44 6 registration Form of share capital/ registered capital FEEH
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
Hik 1%
Directly Indirectly
TR TREEHRAR il HRAT il - 100%  AREEIA LR
100,000#7C
WLS Contractors Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of management
company HK$100,000 contracting services
ERE (AP T 43 HRAT L@k - 100% - TR
HIRAF 25,0008 17¢
WLS (Macau) Engineering Macau Limited Ordinary Scaffolding works business
Company Limited company MOP25,000
TERE BRI A PR A ] il HRAT vl - 100% AR
100,000 7T
Wui Loong Consultancy Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of consultancy services
Company Limited company HK$100,000
TERE S AT IR A il HRAT vl - 100%  WIEREA
100,000 #7C
Wui Loong Holdings Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Property holding
Company Limited company HK$100,000
EREMEA TRA it HRAT TEk - 100%  FAHNTRCER
28T YEIESa
R EE
IRAENE (B k)
1,900,000#7C
Wui Loong Scaffolding Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Scaffolding works business
Works Company Limited company HK$2 and property investment
Non-voting
deferred (Note)
HK$1,900,000
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

A A AT IR A/
ik, CETREE I A 2 i P
BRWN JBeA /g A Proportion of
Place of ®A Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ HMEA fully paid up issued share capital/
B 2 5 44 registration Form of share capital/ registered capital FEEH
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
W 53
Directly Indirectly
TERE R S A IR A Fils HIRAT vl - 100% LR
100,000#7C
Wui Loong System Scaffolds Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Scaffolding work business
Company Limited company HK$100,000
B A R A Fils HRAT il - 100%  BRRMLIER
100,000#7C
Wui Luen Engineering Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Suspended ceiling business
Company Limited company HK$100,000

BEGE @ JEAS SRR A RS N MERE A IS - S
JiE B TROR G sl A € 1B > IR JERE A Ak 2 IR
[i] 5 <5z 2 S2AT ] 7R 6 S (MR b e i A v
O3 UR T A F A A A N 1,000,000 1845

TeAR 2 A B I — R & ERERAL) o

T AF A BCAR AL ATBRE ] > 5 B8 28 W) A 4T

AT S o

ERINEA N R MR GRS T2 B A
B 2 A G T B W) o SRR S A

W& 2 7] 2 SRS S R R R TR -

Note: The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to attend or

vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus assets in a return of

capital in a winding-up (other than one half of the balance of such assets after the
sum of HK$100,000 billion has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary
shares of the Company in such winding-up).

None of the subsidiaries had any debt security outstanding at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion

of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of

the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

¥4 RESULTS
REMH =1 H kAR
Year ended 30 April
it < 22— S A% S 5 — 41—
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
T Tt Tkt T Tt
HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
(E5)
(restated)
BER Turnover 220,006 148,503 176,393 135,237 146,474
BB AR Cost of sales (183,308) (118,436) (143,833) (116,091) (117,053)
EA Gross profit 36,698 30,067 32,560 19,146 29421
HAfg A Other income 851 501 651 627 849
Giba Administrative expenses (26,945) (22,813) (25,907) (28,140) (26,655)
BEEATEA Increase in fair value of investment
38 properties 1,517 500 800 500 =
HFEGR G Surplus (deficit) on revaluation of
(s 4h) buildings 167 311 (721) - -
BB R Finance costs (4,686) (2,505) (2,050) (1,731) (1,224)
= YNGE S Share of results of associates (66) (15) 21 (83) -
TR AL ] £ Share of results of jointly controlled
EES entities 3) 378 13 - -
BB A (18 Profit (loss) before taxation 7,533 6,424 5,467 (9,681) 2,391
BiIH Taxation ,171) (1,587) (1,278) 862 1,474
AR () Profit (loss) for the year 6,362 4837 4,189 (8.819) 3,865
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e B £ 45 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RA=+H
At 30 April
it < 22— S A% S 5 — 41— St
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
T Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS’000
(#E51)
(restated)
g Total assets 179,996 117,527 99,716 110,957 103,268
e Total liabilities (126,782) (73,414) (58,153) (73,531) (56,616)
53,214 44113 41,563 37426 46,652
EN/NGL S DN Equity attributable to equity
JENGHE 2R holders of the Company 53,701 44316 42,086 37,991 46,942
DEMRE R Minority interests (487) (203) (523) (565) (290)
53,214 44113 41,563 37426 46,652
B - Note:

P A AR — BTN H =4 HARF R A S
B7;e iR N w19 e 22 S UIVEC 1 Pl % o S N
Bt BOR B < S B A R > Y iR SR
IERE LI Pa

The above financial summary prior to 2004 has not been adjusted for the effect on the
changes in the accounting policies as a result of the adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards starting from the year ended 30 April 2006, as the directors
considered that it is not practical to do so.
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTIES

B S

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AS AT 30 APRIL 2007

BE 440 Rt i A48 i A SR B P A
LB 35 jibed (FI5m) RV [t yepid’a
Approximate
gross floor area Percentage of the
Description Use (square feet) Status Group’s interest
1) FEAFEFHEI [N 1,130 2 100%
SEFAT 1157 Commercial Vacant
FMERE S5 A JE 10 #22-23 &
Unit 22-23
10/F, Pacific Link Tower,
Southmark, No. 11 Yip
Hing Street, HK
2) FEAEFEI [N 2,285 thl 100%
SEFAT 1157 Commercial Rental
FMERE S A JE 10 #E25-27 &
Unit 25-27
10/F, Pacific Link Tower,
Southmark, No. 11 Yip
Hing Street, HK
3)  FEEF [N 2,881 thl 100%
B 2 9% Commercial and Rental
BRI B E residential

Flat B on 1/F,

Mountain View Mansion
No. 2 Swatow Street
Hong Kong
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

R R IR AT (TARAT ) sERT R
FERELAENA=Z+—H (B H) FFoBH=1
OB T v T s A T U 2R L 11 SR R T R
101 1001 — 1006 25 5247 A F K& > 5 LA R
HR 4 0

1. B RMERE - ZZE4EN A =4H Ik
R AR BT RE - EH G I
il

2. HEBEBEEREUREANFAESE (H
+ ) M

3. HIREEZFFEFNA=+HILFER
SR 0.5 B AR DABCAR B IS8 1A

4. THAEZWEAN N TSR AR b A e
<

B 2 el S IE > 75 8 T I 17 A8 T 51 Rk 58
BT ERHER (R A TERT)

WRYER

(a) TEARGERRE (o) BIBIRT > KIEE
HEW & 22 5 BT A BR 2 W) A SE AR RS 27
ETTALA (TRISER BT ) —
e T A (At YA 24 ) HE R A B
W G2 AN 30 WATHEA A A —
DIHES LABC 8% ~ 347 KR PRAR 2 )
JEAS T B R BEAT Ay - S AE AT REZH
A7 f6 2% 5 HEE 3 R A o BIGHR o  J A
i~ Wbk LA

(b)  ASPRERZE (a) BUI A HEAE G 52 4
1A TR 30 T A0 1 S i ) R ZE
TEA B R 4 SR AR A T R R S RE T 1Y
B REER ~ bk S RO

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of
shareholders of WLS Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be held at
Rooms 1001-1006, 10th Floor, Southmark, 11 Yip Hing Street, Wong Chuk
Hang, Aberdeen, Hong Kong on 31 August 2007 (Friday) at 2:30 p.m. to

transact the following ordinary businesses:

l. to receive, consider and approve the audited consolidated financial
statements and the reports of the directors and auditors for the year
ended 30 April 2007;

2. to re-clect directors and to authorise the board of directors of the

Company (the “Directors”) to fix their remuneration;

3. to declare a final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2007 of HKO0.5

cent per share with scrip option;

4. to re-appoint the Company’s auditors and to authorise the Directors to

fix their remuneration;

and, as special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following

resolutions with or without amendments as ordinary resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

S. THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution, pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”), the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant
Period (as defined below) of all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with the unissued shares in the capital of the
Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such powers be and the same

is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise
the Directors during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require the exercise of such

powers after the end of the Relevant Period;
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(d)

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant
to options or otherwise), issued or dealt with by the Directors
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution,
otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as defined below);
or (ii) the exercise of any option under the share option scheme of
the Company; or (iii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment and issue of shares in lieu of the whole
or part of a dividend on shares in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company in force from time to time, shall not

exceed the aggregate of:

(1) 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company in issue on the date of the passing of this

resolution; and

(i)  (if the Directors are so authorised by a separate ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the Company) the nominal
amount of any share capital of the Company repurchased by
the Company subsequent to the passing of this resolution (up
to a maximum equivalent to 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
date of the passing of this resolution), and the authority
pursuant to paragraph (a) of this resolution shall be limited

accordingly; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the date of the passing

of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company;

(i1)) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
general meeting of the Company is required by the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
or any other applicable laws of the Cayman Islands to be
held; and
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(iii)) the date on which the authority given under this resolution
is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the

shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in the Company, or offer
or issue of warrants, options or other securities giving rights to
subscribe for shares open for a period fixed by the Directors to
eligible holders of shares in the Company on the register on a
fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of shares
(subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements, or having regard to any restrictions or obligations
under the laws of, or the requirements of, or the expense or
delay which may be involved in determining the existence or
extent of any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or
the requirements of, any jurisdiction outside Hong Kong or any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange outside Hong

Kong).

6. THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the exercise by the
Directors during the Relevant Period (as defined below) of all
powers of the Company to repurchase its shares on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
or any other stock exchange outside Hong Kong on which the
shares of the Company may be listed and recognised by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC”) and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for such purpose,
and otherwise in accordance with the rules and regulations of the
SFC, the GEM Listing Rules, the Articles of Association of the
Company and all other applicable laws in this regard, be and the

same is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;
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(b) AN FEIRIEA PR L (a) BT AL (b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which
TEAE A IR 09 [H PA J m  J38 473 T L A may be repurchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in
FAARAG R A A Rk 52 7 H A paragraph (a) of this resolution during the Relevant Period shall
N EEAT A A A RE 10% - A& not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued
PSR (a) B RETRZH 22 BB 5 share capital of the Company as at the date of the passing of this

resolution and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a) of this

resolution shall be limited accordingly;

(c) FAPERZEM S (c)  for the purposes of this resolution:
[ B | 45t As P 2t H “Relevant Period” means the period from the date of the passing
TR B =2 e e H A I of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:
fh] :
() AR E R AR A (i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
IR 5 Company;
(i) AN ER S FHSTER LR (ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual
A % 40 R 55 BH 2 B s AT ] 2 general meeting of the Company is required by the
FEBIHLE - A8 A FZH A B Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
T e R SR 4 O 114 A R or any other applicable laws of the Cayman Islands to be
TIRF 5 & held; and
(i) A AR BCR R & b (iii) the date on which the authority given under this resolution
8 PRk 52 B B AR is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the
R R F Y . shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
Bk : 7.  THAT:
FFE8 5 B 6V M PLik SR E U 1% - subject to the ordinary resolutions nos. 5 and 6 above being duly passed,
RIZ T8 & 2 S — A > LAA T8 the unconditional general mandate granted to the Directors to exercise
Zli/\ﬁj’fﬁjﬂ‘ﬁﬂfﬁut’éﬁﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬂ% ° the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with unissued
1T BB BARBEAT A > BIE vh 55 A A shares pursuant to resolution no. 5 above be and is hereby extended by
ﬁj*ﬁbﬁ DL L3R 6 JH IR SR FE TR T Z A A the addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal
IR 255 ) PR A A TR (L SRR > MR BORER amount of the share capital of the Company repurchased by the
(CESISTH IR SIE: SRR /NI T e Company under the authority granted pursuant to resolution no. 6 above,
AKRTHAEZ 10% © provided that such amount shall not exceed 10 percent of the aggregate

nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the

date of the passing of this resolution.
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8. THAT:

the refreshment of the scheme limit of the Company’s share option
scheme adopted on 25 November 2001 and all other share option
schemes of the Company, up to 10% of the number of shares in the
capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing this resolution
(the “New Scheme Limit”) be and is hereby approved and any director
of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do such acts and execute

such documents to effect the New Scheme Limit.

By order of the Board
WLS Holdings Limited
So Yu Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 July 2007
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Head

office and principal place of

business in Hong Kong:
Rooms 601-603 and 605
Southmark
No. 11 Yip Hing Street
Wong Chuk Hang
Aberdeen

Hong

Notes:

Kong

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above
notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxy to attend and, subject to the
provisions of Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, vote in

his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy must be deposited together with a power of
attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified
copy of that power or authority, at the office of the Company’s Hong Kong
branch registrar, Tengis Ltd, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than forty-eight hours before the time for holding

the meeting or any adjourned meeting.

In relation to the proposed resolutions nos. 5 and 7 above, approval is being
sought from the shareholders of the Company for the grant to the Directors of a
general mandate to authorise the allotment and issue of shares under the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors have no immediate plan to issue any new shares of
the Company other than shares which may fall to be issued under the share option
scheme of the Company or any scrip dividend scheme which may be approved by

shareholders of the Company.

In relation to the proposed resolution no. 6 above, the Directors wish to state
that they will exercise the powers conferred thereby to repurchase shares in
circumstances which they deem appropriate for the benefit of the shareholders of
the Company. An explanatory statement containing the information necessary to
enable the shareholders of the Company to make an informed decision to vote on
the proposed resolution as required by the GEM Listing Rules will be set out in a
separate document to be despatched to the shareholders of the Company with the

annual report for the year ended 30 April 2007.
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